
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, MAY 19, 2014, AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Mayor Rankin___; Vice-Mayor Smith___;   

Councilmembers:  Tom Celaya___; Bill Hawkins___;  
Ruben Montaño___; Tara Walter___; Vallarie Woolridge___;  
 

3. WORK SESSION REGARDING CHANGES TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES: ADAPTIVE REUSE AND SIGN CODE.   

 
4. INVOCATION 

 
5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
  

a. Public Hearing on an application received from Linda Parviainen, Florence 
Gardens Mobile Home Association, 3830 Florence Boulevard, Florence, 
Arizona, for a new Class A bingo license, and for Council recommendation 
for approval or disapproval of said license to the Arizona Department of 
Revenue.  
 

b. Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing the 
Business of the Month. 

 
8. MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 

NO. 1 BOARD. 
 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to authorize the Merrill Ranch Facilities 
District No. 1 Board Manager to secure General Obligation Bonds (GO 
Bonds) for purposes of financing public improvements within Merrill Ranch 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



Community Facilities District No. 1, in an amount not to exceed $1,500,000, 
plus costs of issuance. 

 
9. MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY 

DISTRICT NO. 1 BOARD. 
 

10. CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part 
of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.   
 
a. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1437-14: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE AMERICAN 
LEGION’S APPLICATION TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR 
$60,378. 
 

b. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1438-14: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING PROJECT BRIDGE’S 
APPLICATION TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR $100,000. 
 

c. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1439-14: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING PROJECT BRIDGE’S 
APPLICATION TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR $225,000. 
 

d. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1440-14: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE’S APPLICATION TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR 
$40,000.  
 

e. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1441-14: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE’S APPLICATION TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR 
$20,854. 
 

f. *Adoption of Resolution No. 1442-14: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE’S APPLICATION TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR 
$59,000. 
 

g. *Acceptance of funds from the Maricopa Association of Governments in 
the amount of $177,496 to purchase a PM-10 street sweeper. 
 

h. *Approval of the April 7, April 14, April 21, and April 23, 2014 Town Council 
Minutes. 

 
i. *Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. February 26, 2014 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes. 
ii. March 19, 2014 Joint-Use Library Advisory Board Minutes. 
iii. February 12, and February 20, 2014, Planning and Zoning 

Commission minutes. 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 
11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Ordinance No. 606-13: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE XV 
LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 150 DEVELOPMENT CODE, SECTION 150.047 
DISTRICT USE REGULATIONS TABLES (A) AND ESTABLISHING A NEW 
RURAL RESIDENTIAL EQUESTRIAN SUBDIVISION (RRES) ZONING 
DISTRICT SECTION (PZC-34-13-ORD). 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. 610-14: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL (DC) ZONE CHANGE 
LOCATED IN AN AREA GENERALLY BOUND BY RUGGLES STREET TO 
THE NORTH, BUTTE AVENUE TO THE SOUTH, BAILEY STREET TO THE 
WEST AND PINAL STREET TO THE EAST; AND INCLUDING PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF PINAL STREET AND 8TH 
STREET (PZC-11-14-ZC).   

 
12. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of appointing Billie Jo Garcia to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, with a term to expire on December 31, 
2014; and appointing Gary Pranzo to the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
with a term to expire on December 31, 2015; and appointing Lee Olson to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission as Alternate 

b. Resolution No. 1443-14: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH MP FLORENCE, LLC., AN OREGON LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY, AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION 
AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-02 – 
“CRESTFIELD MANOR MP FLORENCE” PROPERTY). 

 
13. MANAGER’S REPORT 

14. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
15. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



POSTED MAY 16, 2014, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  



 MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 
SPECIAL MEETING 

AGENDA 
 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT BOARD AND TO THE 
GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 
BOARD WILL HOLD A SPECIAL MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON MONDAY, 
MAY 19, 2014, AT APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. (IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE 
OPENING OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING) IN THE CHAMBERS OF 
TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL   Chair Tom Rankin__, Vice-Chair Tom Smith__, 

Board  Members:  Vallarie Woolridge__, Tom Celaya__,   
Ruben Montaño__, Bill Hawkins__, and Tara Walter__.   
 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to authorize the Merrill Ranch Facilities 
District No. 1 Board Manager to secure General Obligation Bonds (GO 
Bonds) for purposes of financing public improvements within Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 1, in an amount not to exceed $1,500,000, 
plus costs of issuance. 

 
4. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Board may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the District Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED MAY 16, 2014, BY LISA GARCIA, BOARD CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  
 
 

mariah
Highlight



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
3. 

MEETING DATE: May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: First Work Session:  Adaptive Reuse Code and  
                   Sign Code  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other Work Session 

 

Subject:  Adaptive Reuse Code Work Session                                 Meeting Date:  May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 3 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
No motion or action is required. This is an introductory first of two (or more) work 
sessions planned on the subject topics. The second work session is being planned for 
June 16, 2014, and staff suggests this may be a joint work session with the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and the Historic District Advisory Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Adaptive Reuse Policy 
 
A draft Adaptive Reuse Program is provided along with this RCA. Staff has reached out 
to communities throughout the State, building officials, specialists in economic 
development and the International Code Council to seek ideas for facilitating 
development within the Town core.   
 
The draft program expands beyond options currently available, and quite frankly, would 
be one of the most robust, business-friendly reuse programs in the State.  The program 
offers added flexibility on building and development codes on reuse projects within the 
defined program area, and there are also provisions to reduce development related 
fees. 
 
If there is support for this program, staff will continue to seek comment on this draft 
document and bring back for more discussion at the June 16, 2014 work session.  The 
goal would then be to come back with an action item to adopt the program as a tool 
under the Town Core Infill Incentive Plan, which staff has also attached to this RCA to 
demonstrate where the authority to implement this program would be derived from.  It 
will be beneficial to have the support of the Planning and Zoning Commission, and 
Historic District Advisory Commission for this program. 
 



Subject:  Adaptive Reuse Code Work Session                                 Meeting Date:  May 19, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Sign Code 
 
The Town has a relatively current sign code in place that was adopted by the Mayor and 
Town Council in 2006.  Staff has brought forth amendments to this code since adoption, 
most notably to propose more business-friendly regulations for promotional and 
temporary signs, including A-Frame signs and banners.  
 
Recently, there have been suggestions that our sign code needed to be revisited.  This 
is not unexpected as development codes should be looked at as evolving tools that can 
be regularly updated to achieve the results desired by the community.  In the case of 
sign codes, those results are largely tied to the community’s aesthetic expectations.  
The current sign code has permitted many attractive signs since the code was adopted, 
including signs for: Safeway Shopping Center, Mt. Athos Restaurant, Holiday Inn and 
Express, National Bank of Arizona, Sonic, Florence Hospital at Anthem, Shell Super-
Stop and many more.  The A-Frame provisions have also proved to be very successful.  
 
Again, there is always room for improvement; so staff has reviewed the effectiveness 
and usability of the current code, compared our code with the codes of other 
jurisdictions and consulted with the Arizona and International Sign Associations, which 
help jurisdictions and business across the country and beyond with various sign related 
matters.  These organizations also work to protect First Amendment rights that are 
afforded in this form of communication and expression. 
 
With that, staff would like direction to work towards improving and updating the sign 
code in the following areas: 
 

1. Overall streamlining of the code to reduce pages and make the code more user 
friendly. 

2. Provide new code language pertaining to electronic message signs (EMCs), 
which have become more and more popular over the past few years. 

3. Review illumination guidelines for signs, including the possible use of neon in 
some districts. 

4. Update code language for directional signs. 
5. Update code language for sign areas, including how sign area is measured. 
6. Update code language for sign heights. For example, the Sign Association has 

suggested that some monument signs for multi-tenant developments be raised 
from 8 feet to 15 feet. 

7. Update language to make the sign code content neutral (First Amendment 
issues). 

8. Ensure that the sign code reflects updated language for political signs. 
 
This is the initial discussion on this matter.  If there is support for these types of 
changes, as well as other changes, staff will continue to seek input and bring this item 
back for more discussion at the June 16, 2014 work session.  The goal would then be to 
come back with an ordinance detailing the code changes accompanied by an official 
vote of support from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 



Subject:  Adaptive Reuse Code Work Session                                 Meeting Date:  May 19, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
Adoption of an Adaptive Reuse Program would have a financial impact as it would lower 
plan review, permitting and potentially development impact fee revenues. However, the 
intent of this Adaptive Reuse Program is to encourage redevelopment; which in turn 
could off-set the aforementioned revenue losses. 
 
The sign codes changes are not expected to have a financial impact. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
No motion or action is required.  This is an introductory first of two (or more) work 
sessions planned on the subject topics.  The second work session is being planned for 
June 16, 2014, and staff suggests this may be a joint work session with the Planning 
and Zoning Commission, and the Historic District Advisory Commission. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Draft of Adaptive Reuse Program  
Adopted Town Core Infill Incentive Plan 
 
 



Page | 1 
 

 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
ADAPTIVE REUSE PROGRAM 

Rules, Guidelines and Procedures 
 

 
The adaptive reuse of existing buildings for new development and the greater 
utilization of infill sites for new development is a priority of the Town of Florence. 
Redevelopment of buildings, whether they are historic, dated or located in older 
areas of the Town, promotes a more vibrant and healthy community. Strict 
adherence to adopted codes for new construction and development standards 
under the aforementioned conditions may cause practical and financial 
challenges to prospective investors, businesses, builders and developers.  
 
This proposed Adaptive Reuse Program is established in order to respond to the 
issues and challenges related to development and redevelopment within the core 
area of Florence.  Buildings eligible for the Adaptive Reuse Program are those 
that were constructed before 1990 and have 10,000 square feet or less in usable 
area. The planned use of the building is open to Assembly, Business, Mercantile, 
Residential and Mixed Use occupancies, such as Live/Work units. In certain 
cases, the Adaptive Reuse Program might only be necessary to facilitate non-
building site improvements on a developed or undeveloped infill parcel, e.g., 
special accommodations for parking on a constrained site. 
 
In addition to aforementioned limitations, the Adaptive Reuse Program is limited 
to the Town’s Infill Incentive District area, excluding any portion of Territory 
Square, undeveloped parcels larger than one acre and/or undeveloped 
subdivisions platted after 1990. In general, this area represents the downtown 
core of Florence and includes the Historic District. The following information is 
intended as a guideline for development/redevelopment and provides 
interpretations to facilitate consistent application of the Adaptive Reuse Program 
by Town staff. 
 

BUILDING CODES 
 
The Town has adopted the International Existing Building Code (IEBC) to provide 
flexibility to permit the use of alternative approaches to achieve compliance with 
the minimum requirements needed to safeguard the public health, safety and 
welfare insofar as they are affected by the repair, change of occupancy, addition 
and relocation of existing buildings. Chapter 4 of the IEBC determines the level of 
work to be completed for any alterations. The often referred to 50% improvement 
‘rule of thumb’ is not applicable to the IEBC.  
 
All applicants intending to reuse (hereafter can be interpreted to include repair, 
change of occupancy, addition or relocation) an existing building or buildings 
constructed before 1990 within the Adaptive Reuse Program area are permitted 



Page | 2 
 

to use Chapter 13 of the International Existing Building Code. Permit applications 
and construction documents should specify the use of the International Existing 
Building Code and the use of the Adaptive Reuse Program upon submittal. 
Chapter 13, as utilized with this Adaptive Reuse Program, will provide increased 
flexibility over the prescriptive approach within the IEBC or Chapter 34 of the 
International Building Code. Undoubtedly, code flexibility is significantly 
increased over the usage of the IBC for new construction. Thus, the intent of this 
Adaptive Reuse Program is to establish the least restrictive tier of code choices 
available for alternations to existing buildings, while not compromising life safety. 
 

CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY 
 

The International Building Code, Section 202, defines change of occupancy as 
follows: “A change in the purpose or level of activity within a building that involves 
a change in application of the requirements of this code.” 
 
The International Building Code (IBC) requirements for a change of occupancy 
pertain only to those items that are required to be added or altered by the new 
occupancy. Therefore, care must be taken to correctly identify the purpose or 
level of activity in the existing building when determining the occupancy 
classification to minimize the application of new code requirements. An applicant 
should clearly outline the intended use and occupancy of the building on permit 
descriptions and plan documentation. 
 
Within the Adaptive Reuse Program area, the Town will not consider it a Change 
of Occupancy if there is ample evidence that the same or more restrictive 
occupancy/use existed in the subject building within the past ten years. This 
would even apply if the building has been unoccupied for some portion of the ten 
year period, however, an updated Certificate of Occupancy is required and the 
building will be subject to an inspection for applicable life safety issues. 
 

LIFE SAFETY ISSUES 
 
The intent of the IEBC and the Adaptive Reuse Program is to provide flexibility to 
permit the use of alternative approaches to achieve compliance with minimum 
requirements to safeguard the health, safety and welfare of the public as affected 
by the reuse of existing buildings. Chapter 9, Change of Occupancy Chapter, 
provides relief in building elements and materials, fire protection and means of 
egress based on the relative hazard level associated with each occupancy 
classification. Change of Occupancy is also addressed within this Adaptive 
Reuse Program for increased flexibility. 
 
The life safety issues that must be addressed are always dependent upon the 
use of the building. Different life safety issues are associated with each 
occupancy classification. The primary areas of focus for the adaptive reuse of 
buildings include structural integrity, electrical safety, exiting and accessibility.  
 

 



Page | 3 
 

FIRE SAFETY 
 

The need for fire protection systems, such as sprinkler systems, new fire 
insulation and/or fire separation walls will be evaluated on a case by case basis. 
Fire insulation will be required where open flame is present. In mixed-use 
occupancies, a fire wall may be required for the separation of the work space and 
residential areas. The type of occupancy or building size may require a fire 
sprinkler system. Electrical capacities should meet the various needs of the 
property owner. This Adaptive Reuse Program allows for limited administrative 
relief of fire codes at the complete and sole discretion of the Town Fire Marshall 
where it is apparent that there are no known life safety concerns. The Fire 
Marshall will provide courtesy consultation on the requirements for individual 
properties. 

 
OPTIONS TO REQUIRED PLUMBING FACILITIES 

 
All occupied buildings require toilet rooms and fixtures. The number of toilet 
fixtures is based on the number of occupants associated with the designated 
occupancy. The occupant load is calculated based on the occupant load factors 
outlined in the International Building Code (IBC) Table 1004.1.1. This calculation 
consists of determining the floor area for a function within an area of a building 
and dividing that area by the appropriate occupant load factor. The IEBC and 
Adaptive Reuse Program provides for options that will facilitate the reuse of older 
buildings. 
 
Option 1: A single unisex toilet room may be used where the occupant load is 20 
people or less and in mercantile occupancies where the occupant load is 60 or 
fewer people. 
 
Option 2: An exception to the calculation method is to provide the actual number 
of occupants using the space and as approved by the Building Official. In order to 
use this exception, statistical data must be submitted by the owner of the space. 
This option may eliminate the need for additional fixtures. An example of this 
would be a ‘women’s only’ dance studio where the requirement for separate male 
fixtures would be eliminated. 
 
Option 3: Provide a bank of toilet fixtures to provide the minimum number of 
fixtures in a campus setting. The number of fixtures required would serve a group 
(or campus) of separate buildings as long as the travel distance to the fixtures is 
less than 600 feet. This scenario is similar to where there is a single common 
restroom facility for a mall food court. 
 
The building and plumbing codes allow for many alternatives and exceptions to 
required plumbing fixtures. The above stated options provide added flexibility. 
For example a row of suites may have shared facilities as long as the number of 
fixtures required are met and the travel distance is not exceeded. At least one 
toilet room must be made accessible, unless technically (structurally) infeasible 
per IEBC Section 912.8, item 7 and IBC Section 3409.4 item 7. Applications 



Page | 4 
 

should outline any alternate plumbing requests in the submittal of plan 
documentations for permits 
 

CLARIFICATION FOR SPECIAL OCCUPANCIES 
 
An Artist Gallery, used to display the artist’s work for sale, shall be viewed as a 
Mercantile Occupancy with an occupant load factor of 30 square feet per 
occupant. Occupant loads shall be posted in the space and noted in the body of 
the permit. 
 
An Artist’s Studio, used to produce the artist’s work in various stages of 
completion, as well as dance studios, may be viewed as a Business Occupancy 
with an occupant load factor of 100 square feet per occupant.  
 
A building or portion of a building, used for the viewing of performing arts even on 
an occasional basis will be regarded as an Assembly occupancy to determine 
exiting requirements.  
 
Some businesses that require ovens, kilns, or open flames for the production of 
articles for sale may require the addition of fire-rated walls and ceilings.  This will 
be of particular consideration in the cases of mixed use occupancies.   

 
ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 

 
Existing buildings that have a change of occupancy that allows public use of any 
part of the space shall provide the following basic accessibility features: 
 

 At least one accessible entrance into the building. 
 At least one accessible route to the primary function areas from the 

accessible entrance. 
 ADA signage for exits, parking (where required) and accessible (or non-

accessible) areas. 
 Accessible parking, where parking is provided. 
 An accessible route between the parking and the accessible entrance. 
 See information under Plumbing Facilities for ADA restroom requirements. 

 
It is noted that the Town cannot override Federal ADA requirements and thus, 
existing buildings that undergo alterations or additions may be required to comply 
with ADA requirements to a greater degree than the Adaptive Reuse Program 
can allow. The Building Official will provide consultation on proposed changes to 
a structure provide added direction in instances where accessibility features are 
technically or structurally not feasible.  

 
PERMITS 

 
The Town will waive permitting requirements for the following within the Adaptive 
Reuse Program area: All cosmetic improvements (flooring, paint, etc.); 



Page | 5 
 

replacement of like equipment involving no new electrical/plumbing/gas work; 
changing of existing doors or windows with like windows and doors; changing of 
light fixtures with like fixtures; and/or any work that is expressly not subject to 
plan reviews and permitting per any adopted Town codes. 
 
However, visible exterior improvements within a property located within the 
Historic District shall remain subject to the Town’s Design Review procedures. 
Furthermore, it shall be the responsibility of the property owners, businesses, 
developers, building owners, contractors, handyman, etc. to ensure that all work 
is performed to applicable codes. If this work is part of a larger project requiring 
permitting, these improvements shall be included on such plans. It is also noted 
that this Adaptive Reuse Program cannot override the requirements of external 
agencies and applicable business license requirements. 

 
PLAN REVIEW AND PERMIT FEES 

 
Plan review and permit fees shall be adjusted by using a ratio of 50 percent of 
the project valuation according to the most current ICC Valuation Tables. 
Furthermore, any project having a modified valuation of less than $10,000 shall 
not be charged any Building, Engineering or Fire Plan Review or Inspection 
Fees. 
 

 DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 
 

Development Impact Fees are not applicable to any building addition or remodel 
or to any once previously developed lot within the Adaptive Reuse Program area. 
Furthermore, per the addition provisions of the Town Core Infill Incentive Plan, 
Development Impact Fees, the Town Council may consider waiving or reducing 
Development Impact Fees within the Adaptive Reuse Program area. 

 
EXISTING BUILDINGS ACROSS PROPERTY LINES 

 
Many existing buildings are built across property lines. The Pinal County 
Assessor can typically combine properties of a single owner through a simple 
process that does not require the use of land surveys. For information about this 
process, contact the Pinal County Assessor’s office. 
 
The general rule of thumb is to combine lots where buildings cross property lines. 
In adaptive reuse cases, official lot combinations will not be required. However, 
the following statement shall be entered into the body of the permit on adaptive 
reuse projects and be shown on the Certificate of Occupancy to express the 
implied and effective unity of the lots: “The development built across a recorded 
property line precludes the selling of the lots individually permitted”. 

 
PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

 
Certain occupancies and/or certain zoning districts will require parking areas to 
be provided in excess of available street parking. These occupancies will be 



Page | 6 
 

dealt with on an individual basis by Town staff with the submittal of a site plan. In 
many cases, zoning relaxes on-site parking requirements, such as within the DC 
Zoning District. Where the site precludes providing the number of parking spaces 
required per the occupancy, a parking study can be conducted to show 
alternative means of meeting parking needs, such as the use of on-street 
parking, the use of public parking lots, recorded shared parking 
agreements/easements or other viable means.  
 
Parking surfaces must comply with Pinal County Air Quality/Dust Control policies. 
This does allow for the use of alternate materials that meet dust control 
standards, such as stabilized decomposed granite, compacted ABC, decorative 
stone, pavers, gravel, recycled paving material, etc. Parking surfaces are 
required to be maintained and handicap accessible parking spaces must meet 
ADA requirements.  
 

PAVING AND GRADING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Paving and grading requirements are typically required on new construction. In 
Adaptive Reuse Program areas, this requirement will be waived in all cases, 
residential or commercial, where the footprint of the building to be reused is not 
enlarged regardless of the size of the property. However, in no case will 
properties be allowed to drain onto neighboring properties.  
 

LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS 
 

Landscaping requirements for all zones are stated in the Town’s Development 
Code. The following provisions can be used to lessen the provisions for 
landscaping on qualifying properties within the Adaptive Reuse Program area. 
 
Landscaping for residential areas will be required on all street frontages of any lot 
as follows: 
 

 One 15 gallon or larger tree for every 30’ of frontage.  
 Shrubs shall be included at a rate of three shrubs for each tree. 
 Inorganic ground cover such as decomposed granite or crushed 

rock shall be the preferred material for ground cover.  
 
Non-residential or mixed-use properties will be required to provide landscaping 
along all street frontages as follows: 
 

 Minimum 10 foot wide landscaping along frontages. 
 Any part of the property not used for parking, building, driveways 

and walkways shall be landscaped. 
 One 15 gallon or larger tree for every 30’ of frontage.  
 Shrubs shall be included at a rate of three shrubs for each tree. 

 



Page | 7 
 

Where existing conditions prohibit the required amount of landscaping, alternate 
methods of providing an attractive and welcoming setting will be considered. 
Such scenarios include where buildings or other hardscape improvements 
extend or nearly extend to property lines. In all cases, a backflow preventer shall 
be installed on supply lines. 
 

CONFLICTS 
 

Where the Adaptive Reuse Program conflicts with other codes, the more lenient 
requirements shall apply, except that nothing contained herein shall override 
applicable requirements pertaining to the Town’s Historic District. 
 

















mariah
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B

mariah
Typewritten Text













Little
League Park

Butte View
Cemetery

Ancient Orderof U nited
Workers Cemetery

Arriola
Square

Jacques
Square

Main
Street
Park

Heritage
Park

RANCHVIEW RD

STEWART ST

1ST ST

WI
LL

OW
 ST

BU
SH

 S
T

9TH ST

BUTTE AVE

LIBERTY ST VISTA AVE

16TH ST BU
SH

 S
T

MA
NZ

AN
ITA

 S
T

CE
NT

EN
NI

AL
 PA

RK
 AV

E 14TH ST

PARK ST

MA
RI

CO
PA

 R
D

BUTTE AVE

RUGGLES ST

8TH ST

12TH ST

PIN
AL

 S
T

12TH ST

6TH ST

13TH ST

6TH ST

11TH ST

3RD ST

PIN
E 

ST

SIL
VE

R 
STWA

RN
ER

 S
T

CENTURY ST

GR
AN

ITE
 ST

20TH ST

ADAMSVILLE RD

22ND ST

CAMPBELL RD

MU
LB

ER
RY

 S
T

SY
CA

MO
RE

 ST

FLORENCE HEIGHTS
DR

GEIB AVE

MU
LB

ER
RY

 S
TALOE CIR

CE
NT

EN
NI

AL
 PA

RK
 AV

E

BUTTE AVE

EL
IZA

BE
TH

 S
T

BRADY ST

AGUILAR ST

DURON ST

VIRGINIA ST

GRESSINGER ST

ELLIOT ST

FELIZ ST

DIVERSION DAM RD

KEATING ST

CELAYA ST

SILVERLEAF ST

BU
TT

E CIR

CH
UR

CH
 S

T

QU
AR

TZ
 ST

COLLINGWOOD ST

GRESSINGER ST

11TH ST

16TH ST

DESERT RIDGE BLVD

1ST ST

AS
H 

ST

DANA AVE

11TH ST

12TH ST

10TH ST

13TH ST

20THST

MA
TIL

DA
 S

T

PE
AC

OC
K 

TR
L

VAN HAREN RD

DE
SO

TO
ST

ASHLEY WAY

LARG O RD

CE
NT

EN
NI

AL
PA

RK
P L

LIBERTY ST

ECHO LN

ELLIOT ST

FELIZ ST

GRESSINGER ST

BUNKER HILL ST

KEATING ST

ORANGE MEADOW LN

MA
IN

 S
T

PLANT RD

TU
RQ

UO
ISE DR

ROSEWOOD ST

FIRETHORN ST

PA
RK

 S
T

PH
OE

NI
X 

ST
KI

NG
 ST

QU
AR

TZ
 ST

DE
SO

TO
 ST

L INDA VISTA

CE
NT

ER
 S

T

PIM
A 

RD

OR
LA

ND
O 

ST

CA NAL
R D

ACACIA ST

POSTON

CIR

RIV ER
LOO P

MORNING DR

OR
LA

ND
O 

ST

BUNKER HIL L DR

CAMPBELL RD

JASON LOPEZ CIR

T O
V IL L AGER D

BUTTE AVE

HIGHWAY 287

PIN
AL

 P
AR

KW
AY

 AV
E

HI GHWAY 79B

MA
IN

 S
T

Town of Florence
Infill Incentive

District

This map is created for reference purposes only and is to be used
at your own risk.  The Town of Florence makes no warranty as to
the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this 
map and assumes no liabil ity for any errors or omissions contained
therein, nor for any direct, indirect, or consequential damages which
may be caused by its use.  It is the user's responsibili ty to verify all
information conatined herein.

TOFGIS         Infill Incentive District.mxd          01/16/2013

0 2,000

Feet

Infill Incentive District

Map area 
displayed in red.

FlorenceFlorence

COOL ID GE

ARIZONA FARMS RD

AT
TA

W
AY

 R
D

AT
TA

W
AY

 R
D

BUTTE AVE

BELL A VISTA RD

QU
AI

L R
UN

 L
N

JUDD RD

ADAMSVILLE RD

FE
LIX

 R
D

FLORENCE-KELVI N HWY

79

287

79

Copyri ght :©  2 009 ESRI



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7a.  

MEETING DATE:  May  19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:    Florence Gardens Mobile Home Association  
                     Class A Bingo License Application 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Florence Gardens Mobile Home Assoc. Bingo License Application   Meeting Date: May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Public hearing and recommendation to the Arizona Department of Revenue on Florence 
Gardens Mobile Home Association’s application for a Class A Bingo License.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Florence Gardens Mobile Home Association has submitted applications for a Class A 
Bingo License.   
 
Bingo is legal in the State of Arizona for recreational purposes or to allow certain types 
of nonprofit organizations to generate funds to support their activities.  Special laws 
govern the way bingo is to be conducted. These laws are enforced by the Arizona 
Department of Revenue Bingo Section.   

 
The Bingo Class A License is restricted to gross sales of $15,600 per year or less.  
They also have no membership or organizational requirements and may not be 
conducted with rented bingo equipment.  The annual license fee, payable to the Arizona 
Department of Revenue is $10.00; and one-time fee, payable to the local governing 
body, is $5.00.  The Town of Florence is holding checks totaling $15.00; and will 
forward to the Arizona Department of Revenue their fee upon Council approval, and will 
deposit the Town’s portion into its coffers.   

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 



Subject: Florence Gardens Mobile Home Assoc. Bingo License Application   Meeting Date: May 19, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff requests that a public hearing be held and that Council forward a favorable 
recommendation to the Arizona Department of Revenue for the Florence Gardens 
Mobile Home Association Class A Bingo License. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Application 

























 

Community Facilities 
District No. 1 

ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
8a. 

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT: Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mike Farina, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:  Issuance of General Obligation Bonds 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  MRCFD No. 1 Issuance of GO Bonds                                      Meeting Date:  May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to authorize the District Manager to secure General Obligation Bonds (GO 
Bonds) for purposes of financing public improvements within Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 1, in an amount not to exceed $1,500,000, plus costs of issuance. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The District currently has authorization up to $1,300,000,000 (pursuant to an election 
held in and for the District on February 21, 2006), in principal amount of GO Bonds. To 
date, the District has issued $4,584,000 in GO Bonds, of which $3,955,000 principal 
remains outstanding. The 2014 issue will be in addition to this amount. 
 
A Feasibility Report will be prepared and will include a description of the public 
infrastructure to be financed by the GO Bonds, a location map, the cost of the 
infrastructure and the plan for financing the infrastructure.  In addition, a Preliminary 
Official Statement and other various documents relating to the 2014 GO Bonds will be 
prepared. 
 
A resolution will then be brought forward to approve the Feasibility Report, authorize the 
sale and issuance of GO Bonds, in an amount not to exceed $1,500,000 aggregate 
principal amount, approve the Preliminary Official Statement, authorize the preparation 
of the final Official Statement, authorize the subsequent levying of an ad valorem 
property tax sufficient to pay debt service and to approve the form and authorize the 
execution of delivery of the various documents relating to the 2014 GO Bonds. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
It is expected that the total bonds outstanding, including this issue, will be repaid with 
the District’s current ad valorem tax levy of $3.25 per $100 of secondary assessed 
valuation.  Operation expenses of the District will continue to be funded by the District’s 



Subject:  MRCFD No. 1 Issuance of GO Bonds                                      Meeting Date:  May 19, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

operation and maintenance ad valorem property tax levy of $0.30 per $100 of 
secondary assessed valuation, for a total tax rate target of $3.55. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to authorize the District Manager to secure General Obligation Bonds (GO 
Bonds) for purposes of financing public improvements within Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 1, in an amount not to exceed $1,500,000, plus costs of issuance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10a. 

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Grants 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernest Feliz 
                                     Grants and Assessment Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1437-14:  Gila River Indian  
                    Community Tribal Gaming Fund Application  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. 1437-14   Meeting Date: May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1437-14, as required in order to submit an application 
for Gila River Indian Community Tribal Gaming Funds. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
This is a pass-through grant application.  American Legion Post #9 has requested 
permission from the Town of Florence to submit an application to the Gila River Indian 
Community for tribal gaming funds in the amount of $60,378.  The application is due 
June 6, 2014.  These funds will be used to repair the roof of the historic American 
Legion building in downtown Florence.  In 2012, the American Legion submitted and 
was granted approximately $47,000, to repair and repaint exterior walls and repair 
signage.  Before and after photos are attached.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The application will be for $60,378 in grant funds. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 1437-14, authorizing the 
submission of the application.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1437-14 
Letter from American Legion Post #9 
Grant Summary Form  
Budget 
Cost Estimate from Swan Architects 
Gila River Indian Community Application Signature Page 



RESOLUTION NO. 1437-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE AMERICAN LEGION APPLICATION TO 
THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR $60,378. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community is accepting applications for the 

distribution of gaming revenues through their State Shared Revenue Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence wishes to sponsor an application for American 
Legion Post #9, which has an immediate need to repair the roof of its historic building 
which was constructed in 1874; and  
  

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence wishes to assist whenever possible to preserve 
buildings like the one used by American Legion Post #9, which exists in Florence’s 
historic downtown; and 
   

WHEREAS, the citizens of the Town of Florence will realize the benefit of this 
preservation effort because it will enhance the quality of life in the community. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Support for the American Legion application to the Gila River Indian 
Community f or $60,378.00 in Shared Revenue Funds is granted. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, on this 19th day of May 2014. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________  _______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 1437-14 is a true, correct 
and accurate copy as passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Florence Town 
Council, held on the 19th day of May, 2014, at which a quorum was present and voted in 
favor of said Resolution No. 1437-14. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 











Gila River Indian Community Grant Application 
 
 
 

Rev. 4/2013 

Municipality Information 

Date of Application: June 2, 2014 

Name of City, Town or County: Town of Florence 

Mayor or Board of Supervisor’s Chairman: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670 

City: Florence State: AZ Zip Code: 85132 

 

Department/Non-Profit Information 

Department or Organization Name: American Legion Post #9/ Town of Florence Grants 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670  City: Florence  State: AZ  Zip Code: 85132 

Contact Person*: Ernest Feliz  Title: Grants Manager 

Phone Number: 520 868-8300 E-mail Address: ernie.feliz@florenceaz.gov  

*The individual listed here will be our direct point of contact for grant-related questions or requests for information.  
Duplicates of all grant correspondence will be sent to the contact person. 
 

 

Grant Information 

Program or Project Name: Roof Repair of Historic American Legion Post #9 Building 

Purpose of Grant: To repair the roof of the American Legion building. The building was 
constructed in 1874 and is listed on the National Register of Historic Places. 

Beginning and ending dates of Program or Project:10/1/2014 to 10/1/2015 

Amount Requested: $60,378.00  Total Project Cost: $60,378.00 

 Multi-year Request – If checked, # of years requested:       Amount/year:       

Priority Funding Area: 
 Economic Development  Education  Healthcare  Public Safety  Transportation 

Geographic Area Served:Town of Florence and surrounding area 

 
Signature: 
Mayor OR Chairman BOS:        Date:    
 
Typed Name and Title: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10b.  

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Grants 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernest Feliz 
                                     Grants and Assessment Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1438-14:  Gila River Indian             
                    Community Tribal Gaming Fund Application  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Resolution No. 1438-14   Meeting Date: May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1438-14 as required in order to submit an application for 
Gila River Indian Community Tribal Gaming Funds. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
This is a pass-through grant application.  Project Bridge has requested permission from 
the Town of Florence to submit an application to the Gila River Indian Community for 
tribal gaming funds in the amount of $100,000.  The application is due June 6, 2014.  
These funds will be used to provide Florence area students in need with clothing and 
supplies at the beginning of the 2014 school year.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The application will be for $100,000 in grant funds.  The organization will provide 
another $66,000, in matching funds for this project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 1438-14, authorizing the 
submission of the application.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1438-14 
Grant Summary Form  
Budget 
Project Bridge Budget Breakdown 
Gila River Indian Community Application Signature Page 



RESOLUTION NO. 1438-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, SUPPORTING PROJECT BRIDGE’S APPLICATION TO 
THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR $100,000. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community is accepting applications for the 

distribution of gaming revenues through their State Shared Revenue Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence wishes to sponsor an application for Project 
Bridge, which serves school children in need in the Florence area; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence wishes to assist organizations such as Project 
Bridge, which is dedicated to providing assistance to Florence area students and 
families; and 
 

WHEREAS, the citizens of the Town of Florence will realize the benefit of the 
effort by Project Bridge because it will improve educational outcomes for young people. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 

 
Support for the Project Bridge application to the Gila River Indian 
Community for $100,000 in Shared Revenue Funds is granted. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, on this 19th day of May  2014. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 1438-14 is a true, correct 
and accurate copy as passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Florence Town 
Council, held on the 19th day of May, 2014, at which a quorum was present and voted in 
favor of said Resolution No. 1438-14. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



GRANT APPLICATION SUMMARY FORM 
 

 
Project Title:       Back To School Program, Project Bridge Family Assistance Program, Inc. 
          
 
Funding Source: Gila River Indian Community Tribal Gaming Grant 

 
Department Submitting/Project Manager: Project Bridge Family Assistance Program, Inc. / Tonya 
Thompson Executive Director. 
 
 
Application Deadline:    This grant application is due June 6, 2014 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1) Project Budget (must be attached) 
 

2) Other____________________________________________________________ 
 
 

FINANCIALS 
 

1) Cost of the Project:        $166,000                                                2) Amount of Grant Request: $100,000 
 

3) Are Matching Funds Required?     Yes         No 
 

4) Amount and/or Value of Match:            Cash_$22,000__        In Kind ___$44,000______ 
 

5) Is the Project Budgeted?                Yes        No         C.I.P. Number:   ___________________ 
 

6) Source of Matching Funds:   Donations & Fund Raisers obtained or organized by Project Bridge 
(Obtain from Finance Director) 

Project Summary: 
The Back To School Program will serve 600 children who are on the free and reduce lunch program, or a child 
whose family is in a crisis. Each child will receive 3 new outfits, a new pair of shoes, 7 pairs of underwear and 
7 pairs of socks. Also each child will be given a new back pack along with school supplies.  This program helps 
children to be able to be successful in learning and receiving an education. Thus being able to move onto a 
higher education level and becoming a productive member of society. 
 
Approximate Start Date: 
This program began in 2012, if awarded this grant we will not receive the money until October 2014, therefore 
the money will be used for the start of 2015 school year. 
 
Period of Performance: 
These funds will be used during the 2015-16 school year 
 

 
_____________________________________________________________ __________________        
Department Head               Approved       Declined   Date   
                         
______________________________________________________________ __________________  
Grants Manager                                                  Approved        Declined    Date 
 
_____________________________________________________________ __________________             
Finance Director                                                 Approved       Declined Date 
                     
 _____________________________________________________________ __________________ 
Town Manager                                                    Approved       Declined Date 



GRANT REQUEST PROPOSED BUDGET 

EXPENDITURES  

 
Item Description                                                             Cost  Each              Quantity               Total  Cost 
 
Personnel:     

Salary for Program Director $21,000.00 1 $ 21,000.00 

    

    

    

Contractual    

    

    

    

    

Equipment:     

                         

    

    

Other Charges    

Clothing & shoes for students in need (see attached) $200.00 600 $120,000.00 

Backpacks for students in need $20.00 600 $  12,000.00 

School supplies for students in need $20.00 600 $  12,000.00 

Printing for 8,000 flyers and 150 applications $500.00 1 $      500.00 

Mileage (travel to family homes and schools .50 1,000 $      500.00 

    

Capital Outlay:     

           

    

    

Total Expenditures: $166,000.00 

REVENUE 

Source of Revenue 
Grant from Funding Agency $100,000 

Cash Match $ 22,000 

In-Kind Labor $ 44,000 

Other (describe)  

Total Revenue: $166,000 

NOTE: Total Revenue must equal Total Expenditures 

Amount



Project Bridge Back To School Program Budget 

 

Revenue:  Grant Funding‐  $100,000 

                   Donations‐   $  44,000 

                   Fund Raisers‐       $  22,000 

Total__________________________________ 

                                                  $166,000 

 

 

 

Expenses:  600 kids 3 new outfits and a new pair of shoes‐ $120,000 

                    600 back packs at $20 each‐                                   $  12,000 

                    600 kids school supplies $20 each‐                        $  12,000   

                    Worker salary for program‐                                     $  21,000 

                    Printing cost‐                                                               $      500 

                   Mileage‐                                                                        $       500 

Total______________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                           $166,000   



Gila River Indian Community Grant Application 
 
 
 

Rev. 4/2013 

Municipality Information 

Date of Application: June 2, 2014 

Name of City, Town or County: Town of Florence 

Mayor or Board of Supervisor’s Chairman: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670 

City: Florence State: AZ Zip Code: 85132 

 

Department/Non-Profit Information 

Department or Organization Name: Project Bridge/ Town of Florence Grants 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670  City: Florence  State: AZ  Zip Code: 85132 

Contact Person*: Ernest Feliz  Title: Grants Manager 

Phone Number: 520 868-8300 E-mail Address: ernie.feliz@florenceaz.gov  

*The individual listed here will be our direct point of contact for grant-related questions or requests for information.  
Duplicates of all grant correspondence will be sent to the contact person. 
 

 

Grant Information 

Program or Project Name: Project Bridge Back to School Program 

Purpose of Grant: To provide clothing and supplies to 600 students in need 

Beginning and ending dates of Program or Project:7/1/2015 to 6/1/2016 

Amount Requested: $100,000.00  Total Project Cost: $166,000.00 

 Multi-year Request – If checked, # of years requested:       Amount/year:       

Priority Funding Area: 
 Economic Development  Education  Healthcare  Public Safety  Transportation 

Geographic Area Served:Town of Florence and surrounding area 

 
Signature: 
Mayor OR Chairman BOS:        Date:    
 
Typed Name and Title: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10c. 

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Grants 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernest Feliz 
                                     Grants and Assessment Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1439-14:  Gila River Indian  
                    Community Tribal Gaming Fund Application  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. 1439-14   Meeting Date: May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1439-14, as required in order to submit an application 
for Gila River Indian Community Tribal Gaming Funds. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
This is a pass-through grant application. Project Bridge has requested permission from 
the Town of Florence to submit an application to the Gila River Indian Community for 
tribal gaming funds in the amount of $225,000. The application is due June 6, 2014. 
These funds will be used to provide Florence area students in need with groceries for 
breakfast and lunch during the summer of 2015.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The application will be for $225,000 in grant funds.  The organization will provide 
another $221,000 in matching funds for this project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 1439-14, authorizing the 
submission of the application.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1439-14 
Grant Summary Form  
Budget 
Project Bridge Budget Breakdown 
Gila River Indian Community Application Signature Page 



RESOLUTION NO. 1439-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, SUPPORTING PROJECT BRIDGE’S APPLICATION TO THE 
GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR $225,000. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community is accepting applications for the 

distribution of gaming revenues through their State Shared Revenue Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence wishes to sponsor an application for Project 
Bridge, which wants to provide food for families with school children in need in the 
Florence area; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence wishes to assist organizations such as Project 
Bridge, which is dedicated to providing assistance to Florence area students and 
families; and 
 

WHEREAS, the citizens of the Town of Florence will realize the benefit of the 
effort by Project Bridge because it will improve educational outcomes for young people. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Support for the Project Bridge application to the Gila River Indian 
Community for $225,000 in Shared Revenue Funds is granted. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, on this 19th day of May 2014. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 1439-14 is a true, correct 
and accurate copy as passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Florence Town 
Council, held on the 19th day of May, 2014, at which a quorum was present and voted in 
favor of said Resolution No. 1439-14. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 



GRANT APPLICATION SUMMARY FORM 
 

 
Project Title:    Summer Breakfast and Lunch Program    
          
 
Funding Source: Gila River Indian Community Tribal Gaming Funds 

 
Department Submitting/Project Manager: Project Bridge Family Assistance Program, Tonya Thompson 
Executive Director. 
 
 
Application Deadline:   This grant application is due June 6, 2014   
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1) Project Budget (must be attached) 
 

2) Other____________________________________________________________ 
 
 

FINANCIALS 
 

1) Cost of the Project:   $516,000                                                     2) Amount of Grant Request: $225,000 
 

3) Are Matching Funds Required?     Yes         No 
 

4) Amount and/or Value of Match:                      Cash__$291,000____        In Kind _____________ 
 

5) Is the Project Budgeted?                Yes        No         C.I.P. Number:   ___________________ 
 

6) Source of Matching Funds:         ____________________________________________________ 
(Obtain from Finance Director) 

Project Summary: 
 
The Summer breakfast and lunch program will serve children who are on the federal free and reduce lunch 
program. These children are from low income families that struggle to have enough money to buy food and the 
SNAP food stamps have lowered what a family receives now. Therefore this program will serve children during 
the week they are off school for breakfast and lunch. The budget is for 1000 families to be helped. Families 
who qualify will receive healthy food item for breakfast and lunch. 
 
 
 
Approximate Start Date: If awarded this grant we will not receive money until October therefore this program 
money will start in 2015 
 
Period of Performance: 2015-2016 school year 

 
_____________________________________________________________ __________________        
Department Head               Approved       Declined   Date   
                         
______________________________________________________________ __________________  
Grants Manager                                                  Approved        Declined    Date 
 
_____________________________________________________________ __________________             
Finance Director                                                 Approved       Declined Date 
                     
 _____________________________________________________________ __________________ 
Town Manager                                                    Approved       Declined Date 



GRANT REQUEST PROPOSED BUDGET 

EXPENDITURES  

 
Item Description                                                             Cost  Each              Quantity               Total  Cost 
 
Personnel:     

Salary for Social Worker $20,000.00 1 $ 20,000.00 

    

    

    

Contractual    

    

    

    

    

Equipment:     

                         

    

    

Other Charges    

10 weeks of breakfast items for 1,000 families $310.00 1,000 $310,000.00 

10 weeks of lunch items for 1,0000 families $185.00 1,000 $185,000.00 

School supplies for students in need $20.00 600 $  12,000.00 

Printing for 8,000 flyers and 150 applications $500.00 1 $      500.00 

Mileage (travel to family homes and schools 
.50 1,000 $      500.00 

    

Capital Outlay:     

           

    

    

Total Expenditures: $516,000.00 

REVENUE 

Source of Revenue 
Grant from Funding Agency $225,000 

Cash Match (Other Grants & Donations $291,000 

In-Kind r  

Other (describe)  

Total Revenue: $516,000 

NOTE: Total Revenue must equal Total Expenditures 

Amount



Summer Breakfast and Lunch Program Breakout of Costs 
  
Breakfast Food Items Expenses 
  
Pancake mixes - $2.00 a box  - 1 box per family=  for 1,000 families at $2.00 = $ 2,000 
Syrup - $ 2.00 a bottle - 1 per family = for  1,000 families at $2.00 =                  $ 2,000 
1 pkg. of bacon per family = for 1,000 families   at $2.00 =                                 $ 2,000 
18 ct. carton of eggs 1 per family = for 1,000 families at $2.50 =                        $ 2,500 
1 box of oatmeal pkgs. 1 per family = for 1,000 families at $2.00 =                    $ 2,000 
1 box of cereal 1 per family = for 1,000 families at $2.50 =                                 $ 2,500 
1 pkg. of saugues 1 per family = for 1,000 families at $2.00 =                             $ 2,000 
1 gallon of milk 1 per family = for 1,000 families at $ 2.00 =                              $ 2,000 
2 bottles of juice per family = for 1,000 families at  $2.50 a bottle = $5.00         $ 5,000 
2 bags of fresh fruit per family = for 1,000 families at $ 4.50 a bag = $9.00        $ 9,000 
______________________________________________________________________ 
$31,000 = 1 week of food x 10 weeks children are out of school = $310,000 
  
  
  
Lunch Food Items Expenses 
  
1 loaf of bread per family = for a 1,000 families at a $1.00 =                               $1,000 
1 pkg. of lunch meat per family = for a 1,000 families at $3.00 =                        $3,000 
1 pkg of spag noodles and a jar of sauce= for a 1,000 families at $2.50              $2,500 
1 bag of frozen veggies per family = for a 1,000 families at $1.00 =                   $1,000 
1 can of veggie per family = for a 1,000 families at $1.00 =                                $1,000 
1bag of pasta noodles, 1 can of tuna, 1 can of cream of celery= $3.50                $3,500 
1 pkg. of hot dog and 1 pkg of buns= for a 1,000 families at$2.50                      $2,500 
2 boxes of Mac and Cheese = for a 1,000 families at $2.00                                 $2,000 
2 cans of fruit = for a 1,000 families at $2.00 =                                                   $2,000 
________________________________________________________________________ 
$ 18,500 = 1 week of food x 10 weeks children are out of school = $185,000 



Gila River Indian Community Grant Application 
 
 
 

Rev. 4/2013 

Municipality Information 

Date of Application: June 2, 2014 

Name of City, Town or County: Town of Florence 

Mayor or Board of Supervisor’s Chairman: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670 

City: Florence State: AZ Zip Code: 85132 

 

Department/Non-Profit Information 

Department or Organization Name: Project Bridge/ Town of Florence Grants 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670  City: Florence  State: AZ  Zip Code: 85132 

Contact Person*: Ernest Feliz  Title: Grants Manager 

Phone Number: 520 868-8300 E-mail Address: ernie.feliz@florenceaz.gov  

*The individual listed here will be our direct point of contact for grant-related questions or requests for information.  
Duplicates of all grant correspondence will be sent to the contact person. 
 

 

Grant Information 

Program or Project Name: Project Bridge Summer Meal Program 

Purpose of Grant: To provide food for 1,000 families in need 

Beginning and ending dates of Program or Project:6/1/2015 to 8/15/2015 

Amount Requested: $225,000.00  Total Project Cost: $516,000.00 

 Multi-year Request – If checked, # of years requested:       Amount/year:       

Priority Funding Area: 
 Economic Development  Education  Healthcare  Public Safety  Transportation 

Geographic Area Served:Town of Florence and surrounding area 

 
Signature: 
Mayor OR Chairman BOS:        Date:    
 
Typed Name and Title: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10d. 

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Grants 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernest Feliz 
                                     Grants and Assessment Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1440-14:  Gila River Indian  
                    Community Tribal Gaming Fund Application  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Resolution No. 1440-14   Meeting Date: May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1440-14, as required in order to submit an application 
for Gila River Indian Community Tribal Gaming Funds. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The funds for this application will be used to purchase a booking workstation for the 
Police Department. This equipment will produce a high resolution image that will 
enhance the quality and reliability of fingerprints and palm prints.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This application is for $40,000 in grant funds.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 1440-14, authorizing the 
submission of the application.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1440-14 
Grant Summary Form  
Budget 
Gila River Indian Community Application Signature Page 



RESOLUTION NO. 1440-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, SUPPORTING TOWN OF FLORENCE’S APPLICATION TO 
THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR $40,000.  
 
WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community is accepting applications for the 

distribution of gaming revenues through their State Shared Revenue Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence has an immediate need to purchase and 
install a booking workstation; and  
  

WHEREAS, the citizens of the Town of Florence will realize the benefit of this 
equipment because it will enhance the quality and reliability of fingerprints and palm 
prints; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence endeavors to continue to employ the latest 
technology being used to enhance the activities of its public safety departments. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 

 
That an application to the Gila River Indian Community for Shared 
Revenue Funds in the amount of $40,000 is supported, and if funds are 
awarded, such funds will be accepted 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, on this 19th day of May, 2014. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 1440-14 is a true, correct 
and accurate copy as passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Florence Town 
Council, held on the 19th day of May, 2014, at which a quorum was present and voted in 
favor of said Resolution No. 1440-14. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 







Gila River Indian Community Grant Application 
 
 
 

Rev. 4/2013 

Municipality Information 

Date of Application: June 2, 2014 

Name of City, Town or County: Town of Florence 

Mayor or Board of Supervisor’s Chairman: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670 

City: Florence State: AZ Zip Code: 85132 

 

Department/Non-Profit Information 

Department or Organization Name: Town of Florence Grants 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670  City: Florence  State: AZ  Zip Code: 85132 

Contact Person*: Ernest Feliz  Title: Grants Manager 

Phone Number: 520 868-8300 E-mail Address: ernie.feliz@florenceaz.gov  

*The individual listed here will be our direct point of contact for grant-related questions or requests for information.  
Duplicates of all grant correspondence will be sent to the contact person. 
 

 

Grant Information 

Program or Project Name: Town of Florence Police Booking Station 

Purpose of Grant: To enhance precision and reliability of fingerprints and palm prints 

Beginning and ending dates of Program or Project:10/1/2014 to 1/1/2015 

Amount Requested: $40,000.00  Total Project Cost: $40,000.00 

 Multi-year Request – If checked, # of years requested:       Amount/year:       

Priority Funding Area: 
 Economic Development  Education  Healthcare  Public Safety  Transportation 

Geographic Area Served:Town of Florence 

 
Signature: 
Mayor OR Chairman BOS:        Date:    
 
Typed Name and Title: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10e. 

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Grants 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernest Feliz 
                                     Grants and Assessment Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1441-14:  Gila River Indian  
                    Community Tribal Gaming Fund Application  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. 1441-14   Meeting Date: May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1441-14, as required in order to submit an application 
for Gila River Indian Community Tribal Gaming Funds. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The funds for this application will be used to purchase Axon Flex kits, controllers and 
assorted equipment that will provide a point-of-view video system for officers. This will 
enhance transparency between the department and the community and protect officers 
from false claims.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This application is for $20,854.03 in grant funds.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 1441-14, authorizing the 
submission of the application.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1441-14 
Grant Summary Form  
Budget 
Gila River Indian Community Application Signature Page 



RESOLUTION NO. 1441-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE’S APPLICATION 
TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR $20,854. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community is accepting applications for the 

distribution of gaming revenues through their State Shared Revenue Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence is dedicated to promoting public safety, as well 
as transparency for its citizens and local businesses, and 
  

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence has an immediate need to improve 
transparency between its law enforcement officers and the community; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence has identified the need to purchase a point of 
view video system for use by Town of Florence law enforcement officers. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 

 
That an application to the Gila River Indian Community for Shared Revenue Funds in 
the amount of $20,854.03 is supported, and if funds are awarded, such funds will be 
accepted 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
on this 19th day of May 2014. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 1441-14 is a true, correct 
and accurate copy as passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Florence Town 
Council, held on the 19th day of May, 2014, at which a quorum was present and voted in 
favor of said Resolution No. 1441-14. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 







Gila River Indian Community Grant Application 
 
 
 

Rev. 4/2013 

Municipality Information 

Date of Application: June 2, 2014 

Name of City, Town or County: Town of Florence 

Mayor or Board of Supervisor’s Chairman: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670 

City: Florence State: AZ Zip Code: 85132 

 

Department/Non-Profit Information 

Department or Organization Name: Town of Florence Grants 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670  City: Florence  State: AZ  Zip Code: 85132 

Contact Person*: Ernest Feliz  Title: Grants Manager 

Phone Number: 520 868-8300 E-mail Address: ernie.feliz@florenceaz.gov  

*The individual listed here will be our direct point of contact for grant-related questions or requests for information.  
Duplicates of all grant correspondence will be sent to the contact person. 
 

 

Grant Information 

Program or Project Name: Town of Florence Police Point of View Video 

Purpose of Grant: To improve transparency between officers and the public 

Beginning and ending dates of Program or Project:10/1/2014 to 1/1/2015 

Amount Requested: $20,854.03  Total Project Cost: $20,854.03 

 Multi-year Request – If checked, # of years requested:       Amount/year:       

Priority Funding Area: 
 Economic Development  Education  Healthcare  Public Safety  Transportation 

Geographic Area Served:Town of Florence 

 
Signature: 
Mayor OR Chairman BOS:        Date:    
 
Typed Name and Title: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10f. 

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Grants 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernest Feliz 
                                     Grants and Assessment Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1442-14:  Gila River Indian  
                    Community Tribal Gaming Fund Application  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Resolution No. 1442-14   Meeting Date: May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1442-14, as required in order to submit an application 
for Gila River Indian Community Tribal Gaming Funds. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The funds for this application will be used to purchase a training simulator and 
additional software for officers. This simulator is designed to improve judgment in 
“Shoot, Don’t Shoot” scenarios.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This application is for $59,000 in grant funds.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 1442-14, authorizing the 
submission of the application.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1442-14 
Grant Summary Form  
Budget 
Gila River Indian Community Application Signature Page 



RESOLUTION NO. 1442-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE’S APPLICATION 
TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY FOR. $59,000. 
 
WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community is accepting applications for the 

distribution of gaming revenues through their State Shared Revenue Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence is dedicated to promoting public safety for its 
citizens and local businesses, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence has an immediate need to improve the 
availability of training for its officers and those of other area agencies, and 
  

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence has identified the need to purchase a training 
simulator for shoot, don’t shoot scenarios that will be available for use by Town of 
Florence officers as well as other area law enforcement officers. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 

 
That an application to the Gila River Indian Community for Shared Revenue Funds in 
the amount of $59,000 is supported, and if funds are awarded, such funds will be 
accepted. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, on this 19th day of May 2014. 

 
       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    James E. Mannato, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 1442-14 is a true, correct 
and accurate copy as passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Florence Town 
Council, held on the 19th day of May, 2014, at which a quorum was present and voted in 
favor of said Resolution No. 1442-14. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 







Gila River Indian Community Grant Application 
 
 
 

Rev. 4/2013 

Municipality Information 

Date of Application: June 2, 2014 

Name of City, Town or County: Town of Florence 

Mayor or Board of Supervisor’s Chairman: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670 

City: Florence State: AZ Zip Code: 85132 

 

Department/Non-Profit Information 

Department or Organization Name: Town of Florence Grants 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2670  City: Florence  State: AZ  Zip Code: 85132 

Contact Person*: Ernest Feliz  Title: Grants Manager 

Phone Number: 520 868-8300 E-mail Address: ernie.feliz@florenceaz.gov  

*The individual listed here will be our direct point of contact for grant-related questions or requests for information.  
Duplicates of all grant correspondence will be sent to the contact person. 
 

 

Grant Information 

Program or Project Name: Town of Florence Police Training Simulator 

Purpose of Grant: To train officers in shoot/don't shoot scenarios 

Beginning and ending dates of Program or Project:10/1/2014 to 1/1/2015 

Amount Requested: $59,000.00  Total Project Cost: $59,000.00 

 Multi-year Request – If checked, # of years requested:       Amount/year:       

Priority Funding Area: 
 Economic Development  Education  Healthcare  Public Safety  Transportation 

Geographic Area Served:Town of Florence 

 
Signature: 
Mayor OR Chairman BOS:        Date:    
 
Typed Name and Title: Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10g. 

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Grants 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Ernest Feliz 
                                     Grants and Assessment Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of grant funds awarded for street  
                   sweeper 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Acceptance of Funds for Street Sweeper   Meeting Date: May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to accept funds from the Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) in the 
amount of $177,496, to purchase a PM-10 street sweeper. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
This application was submitted in November 2013.  The Town was informed in February 
2014 that its PM-10 levels were not high enough to prioritize it for funding of a street 
sweeper.  In April 2014, the Town was informed that additional funding had been made 
available and the award was made.  The street sweeper cost is estimated at $188,225. 
The Town will have to provide a match of $10,729 from its own funds (5.7%), per the 
agreement with the MAG.  The street sweeper must be purchased by March 26, 2015.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
MAG is awarding $177,496 to the Town. The Town match is $10,729. The street 
sweeper’s estimated cost is $188,225.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council accept the funds from the MAG. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Street Sweeper award letter  
Application 

















MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
APRIL 7, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge 
 

Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 1 of 11 

INVOCATION 
 
Councilmember Woolridge led the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. Jerry Ravert, Florence Resident, requested that the Council reconsider the location 
of the library.  He requested that the library be placed at the Silver King Hotel.  It is his 
understanding that the Pinal County property will be demolished.  He would like to see 
the library placed on the Silver King property where the demolished portion used to be.  
He said there is room for a library, computer facilities and a small outdoor seating area.  
He also requested that the park and amphitheater not be built, but rather add a parking 
lot which will support the visitors.   
 
Mr. Ravert referred to Mr. Harris Sulvan’s report on Florence’s AT that was done in the 
1970s.  The report contains the streetscape for the Florence library.  The Town would 
only need to design the interior.  This type of change will complement the Town and 
District as well as improve visitation to the downtown area.     
 
Mr. John Anderson, Florence Resident, thanked the Council for the opportunity to serve 
on the Planning and Zoning Commission for three years.  He thanked Councilmember 
Walter for inquiring about his resignation.  He wanted to clarify the answers to some of 
the questions that were asked at the previous meeting regarding his resignation.  He 



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 2 of 11 

said that Councilmember Walter inquired about a meeting that was to be planned, and 
the Town Manager responded that they were going to have the meeting but that Mr. 
Anderson chose to resign instead.  He said that he never heard of any meeting.  He 
said Councilmember Walter asked if they should table the acceptance of his resignation 
in order to have further discussions.  He said the Town Manager responded that they 
asked them both, the members of the Commission directly, and they decided not to 
come to the Council and he chose to submit his resignation.  He reiterated that 
absolutely no one spoke to him about his resignation.   
 
Mr. Anderson stated that he also resigned because of the kind of respect that Town 
staff has shown the citizens of the Town.  He wanted to clarify the remarks made 
because he does not want the Council to think that he is a quitter.   
 
Mr. Terry Makdad, Wild Horse Estate Resident, stated that the equestrian zoning was to 
come before the Council on April 21, 2014, but understands that it has since changed.  
He is requesting that the Council adopt the Planning and Zoning Commission’s 
recommendation of Option A of the RRES 606-13 Ordinance.  He said Option A is the 
only option that complies with the ARS § 9-471 Paragraph L, as stated at the March 20, 
2014 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, by the Town’s legal counsel.  He 
stated that State Statute requires that the annexing body to implement zoning as close 
as possible to the existing County zoning.  He also requested that the Mayor announce 
that the meeting will be for public hearing and action.  The issue of the zoning for Wild 
Horse Estates, if annexed, has been going on since the October 30, 2013.   He said it is 
time to end the conflict that has been caused by this issue and allow the residents of 
Wild Horse Estates to get on with their lives.  He asked that Council not wait until May 5, 
2014 to make the decision.  He asked if a new letter must be sent to the Wild Horse 
residents announcing that a decision will be made on April 21, 2014, that it be done 
immediately.  
 
Mr. Makdad stated that Ms. Kelea Nevis, Wild Horse Estates Resident, stated that she 
overturned  the December 5, 2013 Planning and Zoning Commission Wild Horse 
Estates recommendation and intends to do the same again.   
 
Ms. Nancy Cincotta, Wild Horse Estates Resident, stated that she and her husband 
have lived in Pinal County for 18 years and own 23 properties in Pinal County.  She said 
the properties are in General Rural, where many different types and quantities of 
animals are allowed.  She said she is a resident of Wild Horse Estates, which is not 
zoned General Rural and does not allow more than two horses per property nor does it 
allow any other farm animals or fowl.   
 
Ms. Cincotta stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommended Option A 
closely mirrors the current Pinal County zoning, the animal ordinance and the CC&Rs of 
Wild Horse Estates.  She said to adopt anything but Option A would be a violation of 
ARS §9-471, paragraph L.   
 



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 3 of 11 

Ms. Cincotta said there is a small, but loud group that wants different kinds of animals 
and larger quantities of animals.  She said there are 11 properties out of 84 properties 
that are out of compliance with the number and types of animals allowed in Wild Horse 
Estates, under the Pinal County zoning.   She said 11 is a small number compared to 
73 that are following the rules.  The rule breakers are the problem and they are creating 
more problems.  There are some that claim that they did not know that there was a 
maximum of two horses and no other animals of fowl allowed, but whether or not they 
knew the rules when they purchased their homes is not the point.  She said ignorance 
of the law is no excuse.  She said it is no coincidence that the most outspoken group 
members are in violation and out of compliance.  Ms. Nevis, spokesperson for the 
group, is in violation, out of compliance, and has no intention of following the rules.  She 
has bragged that she has had plenty of experience fighting the same battle in two other 
states, Colorado and California. 
 
Ms. Cincotta stated that Ms. Nevis and the group would like the Council to believe that it 
is their right to have more animals, but not if they live in Wild Horse Estates.  She said 
the zoning, the ordinance and the CC&Rs do not allow it.  She requested that the April 
21, 2014 Town Council meeting be for the public hearing and action of this item.    
 
 PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
 
Public hearing on an application for a zone change from Single-Residential 
Ranchette (R1-R) to Single-Family Residential (R1-6); and First Reading of 
Ordinance No. 609-14:  
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Ordinance No. 609-14 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON THE REDSTONE RANCH PROPERTY 
LOCATED IN A PORTION OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 7, 
TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 10 EAST, GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AKA, APN 206-01-0230 (PZC-41-13-ZC).   
 
Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, explained where the property is 
located and said the property has one owner.  He explained the process for annexation 
that has taken place.  He said the next steps include the first reading on the annexation 
ordinance, first reading on applying the comparable zoning on the property, and the 
application of the comparable zoning.  The new zoning will be applied after the 
comparable zoning has been applied.     
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired where the substation will be located.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff identified the location of where the substation may be located.  
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that a meeting is being scheduled to 
discuss the short term and long term planning of the area.   



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 4 of 11 

 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.  There being no public comment, Mayor 
Rankin closed the public hearing. 
 
Annual Report Presentation by Police Chief Daniel Hughes.   
 
Mr. Daniel Hughes, Police Chief, said Florence has been named the 17th safest city in 
America and the 4th safest city in Arizona.  These types of acknowledgments are 
unsolicited and much appreciated.  He said the Police Department is actively involved 
with the community and works diligently to build a good rapport and strong partnerships 
with the citizens.    
 
Chief Hughes provided an overview of the statistics from 2011 to 2013 and said 
Florence has a 12% decrease in crimes.  The officer initiated calls for service have 
increased from 10% in 2012, to 41% the following year.  It is the officers’ goals to be 
more involved in the community and to be more interactive; the increase indicates that 
they are doing that.  He said citations have increased and the citations are written to 
promote public safety and to reduce accidents.  He stated that they have also 
conducted campaigns to reduce speed in areas where people need to be safer in their 
driving.    
 
Chief Hughes stated the Police Department has received several grants from the 
Governor’s Office of Highway Safety for overtime costs and new equipment.  He went 
over quality of life issues, such as accidents being down by 5.3%; simple assault and 
criminal damage are also down 15%; and welfare checks and officer involvement has 
increased 69%.   The interaction with the community is a top priority and is needed in 
order to keep the community safe.   
 
Chief Hughes outlined the three beats that they have.  He said partnership is key and 
necessary to keep our community safe, such as installing safety seat and seat belt 
enforcement.  They also do commercial vehicle checks to ensure safety.  They also 
partner with the schools and teach gang resistance and other educational programs 
dealing with ethics.    Working with the youth is instrumental to provide a safer 
community in the future.     
 
Chief Hughes said training has increased.  Officers are being provided training that they 
have never had in the past.  The volunteers are also very involved in the community and 
have a strong presence.  He stated that the 911 dispatchers have very demanding and 
difficult jobs.  There are numerous screens that they have to monitor and they carry a lot 
of responsibility.  The 911 calls have increased from 2011 to 2013.  The said the 
records department also does very well.  They strive for great customer service and to 
provide the public what they need.    He said they have a prescription drop off box and 
took in approximately 31 pounds of prescription and non-prescription drugs.  He said 
the box was taken to Anthem and they collected 23 pounds from that location.  The goal 
is to publicize the drop off box and collect more drugs so that it doesn’t go into the water 
system.   



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 5 of 11 

Councilmember Montaño inquired about the increase in speed violations.    
 
Chief Hughes stated they have tried to slow traffic down in the high usage areas such 
as Hunt Highway.  The goal is to slow people down.   
 
Mayor Rankin would like to see a higher officer presence in school zones.   He said the 
public has become aware that the volunteers cannot give citations.   
 
Chief Hughes said they will increase the officer presence in school zones.   
 
Councilmember Celaya said that the students speed on Willow Street when they are 
leaving the high school campus during lunch.   
 
Mayor Rankin requested that another speed bump be installed on Willow Street and 
one added on Central.   
 
Chief Hughes said they will increase the police presence in those areas.   
 
Mayor Rankin requested some type of driver education to the high school students.   
 
Councilmember Walter said prom and graduation are fast approaching and campaigns 
are done to deter drinking and driving.  She said Pinal County uses RICO funds for the 
lock in program for high school students.  She said that may be a good time in which to 
do the educational programs.   
 
Mayor Rankin commended the Police Department for their hard work and efforts.   
 
Proclamation of the Mayor declaring April 6 – 12, 2014, as the Week of the Young 
Child in Pinal County.  
 
Mayor Rankin declared April 6 – 12, 2014, as the Week of the Young Child in Pinal 
County.  He said the children are the future of the community.  Education is vital for their 
growth.  The work that First Things First is doing is much appreciated.   
 
Mr. Brett Haupt, Community Outreach Coordinator for Pinal Region, First Things First, 
accepted the proclamation.  He said 90% of a child’s critical brain development happens 
by age five and 80% by age three.  He said the skills, such as vocabulary, reading 
comprehension, self-esteem, focus, and motivation, are what are learned during those 
first critical years, and they will carry those skills with them through their entire lives.  
Those traits are what are also found in successful people.  He said often times quality 
education is important; however, more than what we teach our children, and more 
important than how we teach our children, it is most important to spend time with the 
children.   
 



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 6 of 11 

CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects 
at the time the agenda item is called.   
 
*Proclamation of the Mayor declaring April 2014, as Fair Housing Month.  
 
*Approval of the resignation of Christine Reeder from the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board. 
 
*Approval of the sale of Town of Florence owned residential property, located at 
745 S. Central, Florence, Arizona, Assessor Parcel Number 202-09-037D, to 
Deborah Bagnall, for $61,444.00. 
 
*Approval of accepting the register of demands ending February 28, 2014, in the 
amount of $2,180,934.30. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to adopt the Consent Agenda, as written.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Ordinance No. 607-14:  
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Ordinance No. 607-14 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED 
STATUTES AND AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE EXISTING TOWN LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
ARIZONA, AND PROVIDING FOR A RESCISSION OF SUCH ANNEXATION IF THE 
ANNEXATION IS CHALLENGED (REDSTONE RANCH ANNEXATION NO. 2013-03). 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that this is the first reading 
of the annexation ordinance.  The second reading and adoption will take place at the 
next meeting.   
 
Ordinance No. 608-14:   
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Ordinance No. 608-14 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE “TOWN OF FLORENCE ZONING MAP” BY CHANGING THE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND FROM PINAL 
COUNTY GENERAL RURAL (GR) ZONING DISTRICT TO TOWN OF FLORENCE 



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 7 of 11 

SINGLE–RESIDENTIAL RANCHETTE (R1-R) ZONING DISTRICT (REDSTONE 
RANCH ANNEXATION INITIAL/COMPARABLE ZONING). 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the ordinance is for the 
comparable zoning of the annexation.  He said comparable zoning must be applied to 
the property when it is being incorporated into the municipality.  He said R-1R will be the 
comparable zoning that is applied.  He said the R-1R zoning will be changed to the R-
16 zoning.   
 
Resolution No. 1430-14:  
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Resolution No. 1430-14 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT AREEMENT WITH JOHNSON RANCH 
ESTATES, L.L.C., AN ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SUCH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, described the location of the 
property.  He said the land use map provides an overview of what the developers would 
like to do with the property.  He said the development agreement is before the Council 
for approval and staff will come before Council in the near future with the General Plan 
Amendment for this property to change the land use designation to a master planned 
community and amending the Florence Ranch PUD zoning document.   The 
Development Agreement is straight forward.  It is a 20 year agreement and will 
supersede the Florence Ranch Development Agreement.  There is a term on the impact 
fees section that residential impact fees will be deferred, but not waived until 500 
dwelling units are completed, or for three years.  This will help facilitate more home 
building activity.   Impact fee credits will be applied for improvements that are done, per 
State Statute and the Town’s ordinances.  The preliminary plats will be for two year 
periods, rather than the one year period, per Town Code.  The master plan exhibit 
references the new water and wastewater infrastructure.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated there is a typographical error in the background section 
of the Request for Council Action Form and read the section in which the error occurred.  
He inquired if the property is on the east or west side.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the property is on the west side.     
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. 1430-14. 
 
Resolution No. 1431-14:  
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, read Ordinance No. 1431-14 by title only. 
 



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 8 of 11 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH 
SEVILLE INVESTMENTS, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, 
JOHN C. THOMSON AND ROBERT C. MISTER (THE “OWNER”) AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-01 – “HUNT HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL” 
PROPERTIES). 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated the site encompasses a 
land area of approximately seven acres located within the pending Magic Ranch 
annexation.  The site is located along the east side of the Hunt Highway corridor, 
generally between the Anthem at Merrill Ranch and Magic Ranch developments.  The 
site sits south of the Johnson Utilities Section 11 WWTP and directly east of parcels 
planned for a future grocery store anchored shopping center.  The initial plans for this 
site include a mini-storage business. The mini-storage facility will ultimately be wrapped 
by additional commercial uses.  He said the owners are supportive of the annexation.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the PADA commits to not increase development impact fees for 
the site for the first five years of the term.  He said the plans, at whatever stage they 
have been entitled at with Pinal County, will be brought in to Florence.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1431-14. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

Manager’s Report 
Department Reports 
Community Development 
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 
Utilities 

 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired about the two hour parking signs that were installed at Main 
Street Park.     
 
Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, explained that the signs were installed 
approximately eight months ago, at his request, to deter activities with the high school 
students that were taking place there.     
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired if there will be enough space for the Farmer’s Market at the 
new location.  



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 9 of 11 

 
Mr. Montoya stated there should be adequate room.  The Farmer’s Market is still in the 
planning process and the item will be forwarded to Council at a later time.  
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired about the roundabout on State Highway 79B and 287.and if 
the Town will need to provide funding for this project. 
 
Mr. Montoya said the design funds have already been put in place.  He said once the 
design is complete, the Town can find the funding or work with ADOT to acquire 
funding.  
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Work Director, explained that the Town will pay 5.7%, or 
approximately $46,000 of the cost, and ADOT will pay for the remainder.   
 
Mayor Rankin explained the changes that have occurred with the HURF funds.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if it is a done deal that they are going to put in a 
roundabout. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that the roundabout has been on the books since 2005.  5.7% of the 
design is approximately $46,000 dollars that the Town has to pay.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the decision to install the roundabout is final.   
 
Mr. Costa said the project has been budgeted since 2005, with Florence paying the 
5.7% of the cost.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins said he would prefer a four way stop.   
 
Mr. Costa stated that combining eight intersections at one point can be difficult with the 
turning movements.  He said the legs of the roundabout will handle many approaches 
rather than a T intersection.   
 
Mayor Rankin discussed his use of roundabouts and said they take some getting used 
to.     
 
Councilmember Hawkins said tourists do not have the time frame to get used to it when 
they come to Florence.   
 
The Department Reports were received and filed. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, stated that the library needs to be by Town Hall 
and not in the downtown area.   
 



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 10 of 11 

CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Walter said the Town held an appreciation dinner for the Board and 
Commission members, where they celebrated the hard work and success of each.  She 
invited anyone interested to join a board or commission or Town Council to do so.  She 
also invited the public to the many events that the Town has planned.   
 
Councilmember Walter acknowledged Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation 
Director.      
 
Mr. Montoya introduced Mr. Hughes, and provided a brief overview of his professional 
career. 
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired when the final negotiation documents for the Johnson 
Utilities purchase will come before the Council.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that he and Mr. Mannato are still working with the Johnson Utilities 
attorneys.  They are fairly close to finalizing the Management Agreement and the 
Purchase Agreement is close behind.  The plan is to have both agreements to Council 
by the end of the month.  
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that the election for the purchase will be on May 20, 2014.  He 
asked Council to wait to make any decisions until after the election.     
 
Mr. Montoya said that it would be a policy decision to be made by the Council.  His 
direction is to bring the finalized documents to the Council.  The Council can make the 
decision as to when to approve the agreements.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith said Johnson Utilities is a good company and it is up to the voters if it 
the Town is to purchase it.  He outlined the base price and the total price if the company 
is purchased.  He said voters should be educated on the cost for purchase and the 
terms of the sale.  He said the Council should not make any decisions on the matter 
until the voters have voted.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge concurred with Vice-Mayor Smith.  She asked staff to have 
another community meeting to educate the public. 
 
Mayor Rankin said he is favor of the purchase.  He said it will cost the users of the 
utility, not the tax payers.  If the economy goes bad, the bond holder will be take the 
utility back.  He said it important to educate the public.  He will be speaking at various 
locations on behalf of the purchase.   
 
Mayor Rankin thanked everyone who sent condolences to his wife Donna, for the 
passing of her sister.   
 



Subject:  Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2014 
Page 11 of 11 

Mr. Montoya said that there will be another work session and special session for 
documents review once they are completed.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge requested that the special meetings be held on a date in 
which they have a Council meeting.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated that they will work with staff to schedule appropriately.  He listed all 
the dates for the upcoming meetings and the topics for each.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 7:06 pm. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on April 7, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
APRIL 14, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Walter, Woolridge 
Absent:  Montaño  
Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 1 of 13 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
Public hearing on proposed Alternative Expenditure Limitation – Home Rule 
Option: First reading of RESOLUTION NO. 1434-14. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1434-14 by 
title only.  
 
Mr. Mike Farina, Finance Director, stated that Fiscal Year 2014/2015 is the final year 
that the Town can operate under the Alternative Expenditure Limitation/Home Rule 
Option for budget purposes.  The Town must seek voter approval to continue to use the 
Alternative Expenditure Limitation for the 2015/2016 fiscal budget year.   
 
Mr. Farina stated that two public hearings must be held in preparation for a fall primary 
election that will ask voters if the Town Council can continue to use the Alternative 
Expenditure Limitation as a part of the budget process.  The second public hearing and 
Council vote to hold the election will be held on April 21, 2014.    
 
Mr. Farina stated that in 1980, voters approved an amendment to the State Constitution, 
which established a system of expenditure limitation and reporting for all counties, 
community college districts and local governments.  The amendment established 
1979/80 as the base year for expenditures and 1978 as the base year for population.  
The amount that local government expenditures could grow from year to year above 
these base levels was controlled by population growth and inflation.    
 
Mr. Farina stated that the amendment allows jurisdictions to seek voter approval to use 
an alternative limitation instead of the state imposed limitation.  The Town of Florence is 
a growing community with a demand on public services or expenditure levels that have 
and will continue to outpace state expenditure limits.  Since the inception of the State 
Limitation, the Town Council has sought voter approval and was allowed to use 
limitation/home rule option to determine the annual budget.     
 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 2 of 13 

 
Mr. Farina explained how the state limitation would affect the Town if the Town were to 
abide by that set amount if the Town were not able to use the Alternative Expenditure 
Limitation.     
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what the difference was between the state limitation and the 
Alternative Expenditure Limitation – Home Rule.   
 
Mr. Farina stated for Fiscal Year 2015/2016, the difference would be approximately  
$17,000,000 to $18,000,000. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what services would need to be reduced or removed if the 
Alternative Expenditure Limitation/Home Rule Option were not approved.     
 
Mr. Montoya stated that staff would need to forward to Council options to reduce 
services or to streamline various things as the Town is trying to move forward.  It will 
also impair the Town’s ability to grow.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the Town would have layoffs.  
 
Mr. Montoya said layoffs would be a possibility.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith stated that the Town would not lose money, but would not be allowed 
to spend it. 
 
Mayor Rankin closed the public hearing.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
PROPOSING AN EXTENSION OF THE ALTERNATIVE EXPENDITURE LIMITATION. 
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.  There being no comment, Mayor Rankin 
closed the public hearing.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
RESOLUTION NO. 1435-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk read Resolution No. 1435-14 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE,  PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ESTABLISHING A POLLING PLACE FOR THE MAY 20, 2014 SPECIAL ELECTION; 
SETTING THE TIME THAT POLLS WILL BE OPEN; AND APPOINTING ELECTION 
OFFICIALS.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 3 of 13 

Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that it is a statutory 
requirement that 20 days prior to the election, the Town has its poll workers in place as 
well as the poll location.  The Town will hold one polling site at Town Hall, with polls 
opening at 6:00 am and close at 7:00 pm.  She stated election officials have been 
named and will serve as clerk, judge, inspectors, early boards and marshal.  The 
resolution also allows for the Pinal County to select an alternative if someone does not 
show up.    
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1435-14. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Special Event Liquor License applications 
for Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s applications for May 1, and June 5, 
2014 for after-hours mixers.     
 
Ms. Garcia stated that this item is before the Council at a special meeting due to time 
constraints.  She stated that the community is invited and encouraged to attend the 
after-hours mixers.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Vice-Mayor Smith, and carried to 
forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and 
Control for the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s application for May 1, and 
June 5, 2014 for after-hour mixers.                                
  
WORK SESSION ON 2014/2015 BUDGET DOCUMENTS 
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, stated that this is the first review of the draft 
budget.  There will be a second review on April 23, 2014.     
 
Mr. Farina explained the budget process with regards to revenues and expenditures, 
forecasting, and projections.     He further discussed the current status of the current 
budget.  He said the quarterly report that was previously presented to Council indicated 
that the revenues were doing very well and were exceeding projections in several 
areas.  He discussed the following: 

- Total Sales Tax 
 Is derived from general, private construction, government construction, 

and food 
 Overall exceeded budget projections of approximately $600,000 
 Trend is to exceed projection 
  Government construction less than what was projected  

- State-shared Sales Tax 
 Meeting expectations as of mid-year 

- State-shared Income Tax 
 Figures come from state and is status quo 

- Vehicle License Tax 
 Trending favorably 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 4 of 13 

 Projected variance is approximately $61,000 
- General Fund 

 Expected to exceed the budget by approximately $620,000 
- Midway projections indicate 3% ahead of the prior year 

 
Mayor Rankin inquired how much the Town receives from the 5% franchise fees that 
the Johnson Utilities customers pay. 
 
Mr. Farina stated that he will provide the amount to Council. 
 
Discussion occurred on franchise fees and franchise fees for San Tan Valley residents. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that San Tan Valley is not a city; therefore, there would be no 
franchise fees.  He explained what the Town would be required to do in order to impose 
impact fees in the area.    He said with regards to the franchise fee currently being paid, 
it is approximately $50,000 for the water fund; however, there would be savings to offset 
that fee.   
 
Mr. Farina continued with his presentation in which he discussed general fund 
expenditures. The expenditures are within budget.  
 
Mr. Montoya stated that a number of changes occurred with regards to how the budget 
was done last year so that it was more transparent to the Council and the community.  
He said department heads have been empowered to make changes to their budgets 
and to remove one-time expenditures and place them in another fund.  The proposed 
budget only contains recurring items.   
 
Mr. Montoya outlined the 2013/2014 accomplishments, which included the following: 

 Annexations  
 Filing 
 Continually making progress 

 Before and After School Program 
 Expanded to the Anthem area 

 Brunenkant Building 
 Restoration to be completed by month-end 
 Open House will be forthcoming 

 Community Survey 
 Financial Reporting to Town Council on a quarter basis 
 Fire Department SAFER Grant 

 First town to receive grant 
 Fire Fighter Social Security Concerns 

 Ongoing issue for last three  years 
 Issue has been resolved 

 Fire Marshal responsibilities transferred from State to the Town 
 Fire Station #2 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 5 of 13 

 Completed and open 
 Florence Heights Overlay 

 Issues with road due to ADOT’s construction on SH 287 and SH79, and SH79 
and SH 79B 

 Road overused by semi’s not using Butte 
 Overlay to start in near future; will be temporary fix until roadways are fixed 

 High School House Sold 
 Revenue received to be used for assistance for homeowners in the future   

 Home Tour 
 Main Street Improvements  

 Phase I and 2 completed 
 Phase 3 and 4 including streetlights 

 Main Street Park 
 Plant Road Paving 
 Police Department remodeled 
 Sanitation Ordinance 

 Work in progress 
 Silver King – Padilla Park 

 Project moving forward 
 Target date for completion is in June/July 

 Street Sweeper Grant from MAG 
 Awarded $175,000 for street sweeper 

 Utility Department  
 Fully staffed  
 Over one dozen projects completed 

 
Mr. Montoya outlined the three year budget goal committed to Council in April 2013: 

 Budgeted Fund Balance use in recurring General Fund Budget  
 Overall Strategy to Bring Down Use and Dependency in the Recurring Budget 
 2009/2010 - $   671,394 
 2010/2011 - $   659,541     
 2011/2012 - $   672,019      
 2012/2013 - $1,463,082   Use of Fund Balance  
 2013/2014 - $   865,115   Town Manager Recommendation  – Year 1 

o Will have approximately $450,000 in savings 
o Staff has saved approximately $1,300,000 in current budget 

 2014/2015 - $   450,000   Town Manager Recommendation  – Year 2 
o Projection indicates it will be closer to $412,000  

 2015/2016   $    ---0---      Town Manager Goal  – Year 3 
 Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) nationally recommended best 

practices is to use $0 of the fund balance unless needed in emergency 
operational activities 

 
Mr. Montoya explained how saving occurred in the fund balance, which included: 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 6 of 13 

- No new vehicle replacements or purchases 
 Thorough evaluation done on each vehicle 
 Upcoming budget will have request for $500,000 for four new vehicles and 

replacements 
- Reduce training and other miscellaneous costs 
- Limit the amount of base increases for contracts and renegotiations if possible, or 

new RFPS 
- Finance Director responsible for finding costs savings in recurring budget and 

work with departments 
 Any line items that were underspent last year were decreased in the 

upcoming budget 
 Department Heads were required to justify the reasons for maintaining the 

current level of funding in order to maintain the current level of funding 
- Move all one-time costs out of base General Fund budget 
- Town Manager’s Office reviews and signs all contracts, large purchases and 

positions 
 
Mr. Montoya explained the Fund Balance recommendation for FY2014/2014: 

- Fund balance recommended best practices by GFOA 
 No less than two months of operating expenditures, or 16.7% 

- Town status recommendation for 2014/2014 
 Six months of operating expenditures or 50% and $7.3 million 

- No property tax increase for 2014/2015 
 Currently at $1.1182 
 Goal in next few years is to be $1.00 

o Wait until economic cycle continues to improve 
o Wait until annexation is complete 

 
Mr. Montoya discussed the 2014/215 total budget requests from departments, which 
included: 

- Total new position requests from departments - $1,438.500 
 Recommended funding - $578,000 

- Total new vehicle requests from departments  - $1,250,000 
 Recommended funding - $500,000 

- End result if all requested were added to base budget - will be a deficit of 
$1,444,000 

- 2014/2015 recommended budget principles 
 Establish base level of services 
 Quality of life enhancements 

 
Mr. Montoya discussed the 2014/2015 annual and strategic long-term goals: 

 Continue to provide exceptional Public Safety and Community Services 
 Expand the tax base through annexations and economic development outreach 
 Secure the Town’s long-term water program for future generations and growth 
 Revitalize the downtown corridor through beautification and business investment 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 7 of 13 

 Make strategic Investments in planning for the continued growth of Florence 
 Improve quality of life and create an equal or complementary service level base 

for all residents of Florence and create new services for younger children and 
active adults   

 
Mr. Montoya discussed the base budget recommendation, which included: 

 Existing approved positions and benefits structure recommendations 
 4% maximum merit increase 
 New benefit plan recommend to Council 
  0% increase over current plan  
 Fully funded PPO plan  

o May include increases due to employees switching primary family 
benefits to the Town’s insurance.   

 $15 copays for doctor visits 
 $15 prescriptions 
 No more HSA  
 Voluntary FSA only if they would like   
 Overall benefits for employees increase to attract and retain the best of 

the best   
 Limit to only recurring items (supplies, service increases, utilities, training 

necessary to maintain certifications) 
 Only added new positions being recommended to Town Council 

 Service delivery and quality of life development 
 No one-time capital or single purchase items in base budget 
 Everything else out of General Fund or recurring budgets 

 If it cannot be justified or does not have data behind it, it will not be included 
 Revenues – 

 Conservative estimates based upon current trends, inflation, League of Cities 
and Towns estimates, and growth projections 

 
Mr. Montoya discussed the 2014/2015 Town Manager’s recommended budget, which 
included: 

 New positions to base budget 
 Health and dental benefit recommendation 
 Transfers to capital projects 
 Expansion of services to the community 
 Increasing quality of life 

 
Mr. Montoya discussed the new position recommendations to base budget, which 
included:  

 Police Department 
 Sergeant Position 
 Structure needed to separate patrol personnel, from other functions, and 

allow Chief senior supervising officers 
 School Resource Officer/Crime Prevention Specialist  



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 8 of 13 

 Important connection for youth in the community 
 Community Development 

 Administrative Assistant  
 Activity level has increased dramatically, customer service enhancements  
 Paid for by increased development and permit fees 

 Parks and Recreation 
 Parks Maintenance Worker  
 Additional and current parks maintenance improvements 

 Special Event Coordinator 
 Increasing the activity level of Parks and Recreation to coordinate larger 

attended regional events and programming 
 Paid for by increased sales tax 

 Public Works 
 Automotive Mechanic  
 Fleet Division to assist in maintenance cost reductions 
 Pays for itself from Town fixing more maintenance items rather than 

multiple vendors at different prices. 
 Information Technology 

 Electronic Media Technician  
 Enhance website and electronic technology communication with the public 

 Fire/Police 
 Office Clerk for Station #2:  
 Administrative Assistant position to support for Town Clerk’s Office, report 

filing for Fire Marshal, and police support for citizens 
 
Mr. Montoya discussed the Town employee benefit recommendation, which included: 

- Original set aside was an 8% increase 
 Plan increases 
 Plan participant charges 

- Elimination of current plan design 
 Fully funded PPO with copay for prescriptions and doctors and lower 

deductibles 
 No more HSA 
 Employees can keep their current balances 
 Employees will have voluntary FSA 
 No increase for employees or Town 
 Set aside 4%, or $50,000, for employee plan participant changes 

 
Mr. Montoya discussed the one time transfers for capital and one-time purchases 

 Annexation Set-Aside:     $   500,000 
 Vehicle Purchase/Replacement:    $   500,000 

 2 police cars, 1 water tanker truck and 1 new fleet vehicle 
 Remainder of monies will be used for replacements as needed   

 Small One-time Purchases:    $   100,000 
 Required fire equipment, other miscellaneous 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 9 of 13 

 Transfer to Capital Projects:    $3,967,700  
 Road projects, other miscellaneous  

 Transfer to Municipal Building:    $5,456,100 
 Library, Recreation Center, Aquatic Center 
 Impact Fees and Food Tax  
 Funds are restricted and can only be used for certain uses  

 
Mr. Montoya discussed the one-time capital projects for 2014/2015 

 Pinal County FCU Purchase:     $335,000  
 Tenant Improvements:              $  60,000 

 Main Street Extension to Hwy 79        $700,000 
 Water Tower Paint and Lighting          $  75,000 
 Police Station/Fire Station #1 Design/Modifications   $  50,000 
 Miscellaneous Furniture, Fixture and Equip       $  80,000 
 Road Repair and Maintenance       $500,000 
 Silver King – Electrical Wiring       $100,000 
 IT Replacement supplies, laptops, etc.              $  20,000 
 Fuel Depot       $200,000 

 Save Town $100,000 per year   
 Main Street Overlay Improvement          $200,000 
 New/Replacement Curb and sidewalks                  $250,000 
 Business Assistance Center                    $  75,000 

 Carry over from Brunenkant remaining savings  
 
Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated that the Business Assistance Center 
is a one stop information center for business recruitment, retention, and expansion.  
She is working closely with Town departments to provide one stop shopping for 
prospective businesses who want to open a business in Florence and to help facilitate 
the process and act as an ombudsman through the development process.  They can 
also provide training for local businesses to help business stay up to date with the latest 
trends.  Business counseling can also be provided.  She said the Business Assistance 
Center will be located in the Brunenkant Building and explained the other various uses 
for the building.   
 
Mr. Montoya continued with his discussion on the one-time capital projects for 
2014/2015, which included:  

 Copier for Community Development   $    2,000 
 G2 Alerting System for new Fire Station   $  45,000 
 Turnout equipment – Fire Dept.    $  35,000 

 Annual replacement 
 Senior Center door replacement       $    3,600 
 Senior Center roof work       $    1,500 
 Senior Center exterior lights      $    1,100 
 Town Hall water heater replacement     $    1,000 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 10 of 13 

 Fire Station #1 sink, faucet and eyewash  $    2,200 
 Heritage Park concession bldg. and bathrooms    $    5,800 
 Admin security modifications    $  10,000 
 Town Hall exterior paint      $  12,000 
 Little League Park concession and bathrooms  $    5,000 
 Silver King Bldg. exterior painting      $    8,000 
 Town Hall cashier window     $  18,000 

 
Mr. Montoya discussed recurring items added to base budget for 201/2015: 

 $40,000 Park & Recreation Events 

 Larger and more Town events 

 $25,000 Park and Recreation Maintenance for improvements at Heritage Park 
and the Little League Park 

 $20,000 Park and Recreation Programming  

 Part-time salaries 

 $20,000 Court Clerk from Part-time to Full-time  

 Court docket has doubled in last few years 

 $25,000 part-time maintenance to assist with bulk trash coordination 

 $10,000 Chamber of Commerce requested contract increase and possible 
addendum to current contract for event planning with the Town.  All contracts will 
be brought to Council for approval.  

 
Ms. Lisa Garcia stated the increase will be for an addendum for this fiscal year as well 
renegotiation for the following fiscal year.  The Chamber’s contract runs calendar year 
(January 1 through December 31) and the Town operates on a fiscal year (July 1 – June 
30).  
 
Mr. Montoya discussed the 2014/2015 budget plans and goals, which included: 

 Animal ordinance on dealing with vicious animals 
 Annexations – Magic Ranch and Arizona Farms 
 Building code updates 

 Create special codes for older structures 
 Bulk trash pick-up 

 Enhance the service 
 Community Events 

 Increase and make improvements  
 Community policing and school presence  

 Increase 
 Grant Funding  

 Continue to seek grant funding for all functions 
 Home Rule Election 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 11 of 13 

 Library, Recreation Center, and Aquatic Center 
 Johnson Utilities potential acquisition 
 Recreation enhancements for children, teenagers and adults 
 Regional Public Safety Dispatch with other communities 

 Regional dispatch for the region (Florence, Eloy, and Coolidge)  
 Florence will receive funding and expanding ability to provide service   

 Roads, street preservations and enhancements 
 Sidewalks/curbs – Willow and Adamsville, Florence Gardens, etc. 
 Website overhaul and community transparency  

 
Mr. Farina discussed the new format of the draft budget documents.  He explained the 
changes that have been made and the additional details that have been provided.  He 
said each fund has summary page which contains beginning fund balance, summarized 
revenues, summarized expenditures, and projected ending fund balance.    
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the budget is what is recommended by him and department 
heads.  He asked Council to let him know of what changes they would like made and he 
will adjust the budget to accommodate their requests along with ensuring that the 
budget remains structurally balanced.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired about the Administrative Assistant position that 
Community Development requested.  He said the salary is to be paid for by the increase 
in development and permit fees.  He said that is the area that he receives complaints 
from on a daily basis. People will really be upset if they increase fees.  He said that 
Parks and Recreation will be paid for by increased sales tax.  Public Works report said 
that they will pay for themselves by fixing more items in house than paying multiple 
vendors, which he agrees with.  He does not agree with the increases in fees or taxes.  
He inquired if the firemen’s turnouts are only good for one year.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated with regards to the requested Administrative Assistant position in 
the Community Development Department, and the Special Events Coordinator position 
in the Parks and Recreation Department, there will be no increases in fees or sales tax.  
He said there are so many additional permits in Community Development that it will pay 
for itself.  He said they anticipate an increase in sales tax due to the increase in events 
in Florence, and with those attending the events spending money in the community.   
 
Mr. Peter Zick, Fire Chief, stated the service life for the turnouts is five years and they 
have staggered replacements so that the Town isn’t hit with one huge purchase at a 
time.   
 
Councilmember Walter inquired if the Town will be incorporating the findings of the 
salary study into the upcoming budget.  She inquired if they will be addressing some of 
the issues that were previously identified due to the compression and scale.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that staff has reviewed the study and there are a number of items 
that they can make recommendations on; however they cannot do all recommendations 



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 12 of 13 

at once due to cost restraints.  They will present the changes to Council later in the 
budget process.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired about the cost for the traffic light on SH79 and Diversion 
Dam, and which fiscal year will it be paid out of. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the Town will pay for approximately 10% of the cost and it will 
be paid for in this fiscal year’s budget. 
 
Mayor Rankin would like to see the projects completed.  He wants to ensure that taxes 
do not have to be raised.   
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Mr. Larry Kollert, Florence Residents, inquired about the street project in Florence 
Gardens.  He said it was a multi-year project and it has been approximately two to three 
years since they have worked on the project and streets remain unfinished.  He said 
$40,000 was budgeted for the project this fiscal year and nothing was done. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence Resident, stated the part-time position for bulk trash 
collection is a great idea.  She sent an email to Council regarding bulk trash that is 
again reappearing throughout town.  She is requesting that something be done prior to 
the next budget being approved.  She said the Town Manager has the ability to instruct 
staff to take care of the issue.    
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Hawkins said the Town paid for the trolleys and pamphlets.  The 
pamphlets did not include the Windmill Winery and the River Bottom Grill, nor were they 
asked to be included in the pamphlet.  He said the trolleys were not utilized.   
 
Councilmember Walter thanked staff for the budgetary process presentation.  
 
Vice-Mayor Smith said there is a bump on Main Street and Butte where the concrete 
and asphalt come together.  He asked for it to be fixed.  There are two lights on Arriola 
Square that are not working and asked for them to be repaired.  He reminded the public 
of the eclipse that will be taking place.  
 
Mayor Rankin said he saw more traffic and people in Florence than years past for 
Country Thunder.  He said the event provides a lot of advertisement for Florence.  He 
said Little League will be starting soon.  He said traffic control needs to be addressed to 
ensure children’s safety.  He said it is important to check the rooms thoroughly when 
staying in hotels or motels.  There may be things in there that can harm a child.  
 
 
  



Florence Town Council Meeting  
April 14, 2014 
Page 13 of 13 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on April 14, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 

 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
APRIL 21, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Smith, Celaya, Hawkins, Montaño, Walter, Woolridge 
 
INVOCATION 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 1 of 21 

 
Councilmember Woolridge led the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. Peter Koulouris, Owner, Mount Athos Restaurant, stated that Councilmember 
Hawkins said at the March 17, 2014, Town Council Meeting, that the Town is not 
business friendly.  He said that he agrees with Councilmember Hawkins and said there 
are things that can be done better.  He believes the Council is business friendly.  He 
came before the Council regarding the sign code approximately two years ago, and at 
that time, Council directed staff to have a work session.  The work session still hasn’t 
happened.  He has reviewed the many pages of the Town Code and believes the Code 
can be simplified and more accessible for new businesses.   
 
Mr. Koulouris said he has a friend who was interested in starting a business in Florence 
and was provided a pamphlet from the Community Development Department.  The 
pamphlet is bulky and not easily understandable.  He said the new division that is being 
created to assist new businesses is a good start.  He understands that staff is busy.  He 
said the process and hoops that one must jump through gives the impression that 
Florence is not business friendly.   
 
Mr. Randy Rosane, River Bottom Grill, Business Owner, provided the definition of due 
diligence, and stated that the Council needs to do its due diligence.  He said the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 2 of 21 

Community Development staff has worked hundreds of man hours on the medical 
marijuana dispensary applications.  He said they followed the direction of the Council, 
and on four occasions, the Council voted against a medical marijuana dispensary.  
River Bottom Grill, LLC, was the applicant for the last medical marijuana dispensary.  
He said he has done his due diligence by visiting dispensaries and doing further 
research.  He has spoken with several dispensaries in various communities and found 
that the Councils’ for those communities gave the directive to adopt the State guidelines 
with minor modifications.  
 
Mr. Rosane said he was led to believe that the application for his dispensary would 
pass, and as a result, he has lost customers because they thought the business closed.  
He had also told his employees that they need to find other jobs and some did.  He said 
the Fireman’s Bike Run was rerouted to Queen Creek instead of Florence, which 
resulted in an approximate $10,000 - $15,000 loss in revenue for them.  
 
Mr. Rosane said opinions were provided at the meeting, and the votes cast were not 
based on the qualifications.  He said the mechanic shop on the end of Main Street has 
closed down, and that is another loss for Florence.  He said he would like to attract 
business owners to run for the Council.  He said the Council is like the Board of 
Directors for the community and suggested that Council consider giving themselves a 
pay increase, starting with $1,000 in benefits.  He appreciates what the Council does 
and they do not get paid enough for what they do.   
 
Mr. Art Buckley, Florence Resident, discussed impact fees on infill lots. He said he has 
corresponded with Mr. John Murphy, CEO, for an investment firm.  In one of Mr. 
Murphy’s responses, he wrote: “… that another aspect on the Town of Florence’s 
position on impact fees is the effect of slowly creating a ghost Town.  The heart of many 
towns has moved nearby because the old town was unwilling to create an attractive 
atmosphere for itself.  Florence Gardens was the last suburb of the Town before the 
creation of Anthem.  If Florence Gardens is forced to atrophy by impact fees it will die.  
As homes outlive their usefulness faster than new home rejuvenate the development.  
The same is true of the old town.  Abandoned buildings are dead unless there is a new 
life created around them, they will stay dead. This will cause the neighborhood to 
descend into a ghost town.  Florence will become another town without a heart and 
values will be worth a lot less.”   
 
Mr. Buckley said developers go to where they have the best opportunity.   
 
Mr. David Bustillos, Florence Resident, stated that he is interested in researching grant 
funding to install solar at the municipal buildings.  He said it is important to be able to 
restore power and water services during economic or natural disasters.   
 
Ms. Cindy Sills, Florence Resident, stated that she agrees with Mr. Buckley. She has 
several businesses wanting to come to Florence and as soon as they realize the cost of 
the impact fees, they leave.  She said businesses along Main Street are closing and the 
existing businesses are in the hands of the Council.  She said the work that was done 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 3 of 21 

on Main Street narrowed Main Street and people cannot see the signage for 
businesses.  She said something needs to be done to save Florence.   
 
Ms. Sills referred to a comment made at the April 14, 2014, Town Council meeting 
regarding Ms. Jennifer Evens’ discussion regarding the one stop shop for new 
businesses being located in the Brunenkant Building; and Mr. Montoya stating that the 
building has been stabilized; however, the Town must limit the amount of foot traffic.  
She said that they may consider moving the one stop shop to a different location if foot 
traffic has to be limited.  She said if the Town is going to bring businesses to Town, they 
need to have someone who lives in Florence and is interactive with the community to 
understand what the residents are going through.   
 
Mayor Rankin responded to Ms. Sills comments.  He stated that Mr. Montoya was not 
referring to keeping people out of the Brunenkant Building, but was discussing the 
difference between heavy foot traffic and foot traffic.  He said with regards to Ms. Evans, 
and the person having to live in Florence, Ms. Evans takes Florence to heart.    He said 
he disagrees with Ms. Sills on those two points.    
 
 PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATION 
 
Public hearing on proposed Alternative Expenditure Limitation – Home Rule 
Option (First Public Hearing held April 14, 2014). 
 
Mr. Mike Farina, Finance Director, stated that the 2014/2015 Fiscal Year is the final 
year that the Town can operate under the Alternative Expenditure Limitation - Home 
Rule Option for budget purposes.  The Town must seek voter approval to continue to 
use the Alternative Expenditure Limitation - Home Rule Option for the 2015/2016 Fiscal 
Year.  He said the Town is required to hold a second public hearing to hold a primary 
election in the fall that will ask the voters if the Florence Town Council can continue to 
use the Alternative Expenditure Limitation as part of the budget process, which is what 
will happen at this meeting.  He said if the Town were required to follow the State 
imposed limitation, it would need to reduce the budget by approximately $17,000,000.       
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.  There be no public comments, Mayor Rankin 
closed the public hearing.  

 
Public hearing on an application received from Joseph Patrick Nolan Jr., 
McNolan, Inc., LB Cantina, 695 S. Main Street, Florence, Arizona, for a new Series 
12 restaurant license; and for Council recommendation for approval or 
disapproval of said license to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and 
Control.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the Clerk’s Office 
received the application for the Arizona Liquor License and Control and posted the 
application at the LB Cantina for twenty days prior to this public hearing.  The Clerk’s 
Office did not receive any positive or negative comments from the public before this 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 4 of 21 

hearing.  Staff is recommending to Council that the application be approved and the 
recommendation be sent to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.   
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.  There being no public comment, Mayor 
Rankin closed the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to approve the application from Joseph Patrick Nolan Jr., McNolan, Inc., LB 
Cantina, 695 S. Main Street, Florence, Arizona, for a new Series 12 restaurant license. 

 
Presentation by Arizona Department of Transportation on the Passenger Rail 
Study. 
 
Mr. Carlos Lopez, Rail Planner, Multi-Modal Planning Division, Arizona Department of 
Transportation, provided an update on the Passenger Rail Study from Tucson to 
Phoenix.  He discussed the study process overview and stated that they are working 
with the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) and Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA).  This feasibility study will determine the most feasible route between Phoenix 
and Tucson, taking into consideration passenger trips and commuter trips with 
communities in between the metro areas.  He said they have three main deliverables:  
develop an alternative analysis which documents the process where all potential 
connections are identified between Phoenix and Tucson; develop a Tier 1 
Environmental Impact Statement which will identify the impacts on the proposed 
corridor alternatives; and develop a service development plan which will identify how the 
plan will be implemented.  He said they anticipate having a draft environmental 
document for public review and comment in the fall of this year.  They will also have 
public hearings in Maricopa, Pinal and Pima counties.  They will have a preferred 
selected corridor by calendar year end.   
 
Mr. Lopez said the study started in 2011 with 140 routes, and through the screening 
process and outreach, they have narrowed it to final 3 routes.  He explained the various 
corridors and said the alignments follow different corridors.  He said the first alternative 
is a common corridor, which would go from the Tucson International Airport, through 
downtown Tucson towards Picacho Peak following the I–10 corridor.  He said the three 
alignments follow different corridors.  The green alternative would follow the I-10 
corridor.  There is a need for additional capacity, so this alignment would run adjacent to 
the I-10 to the Phoenix area.  The yellow alternative would follow the Union Pacific 
Railroad corridor from Eloy to the Metro Phoenix area.  The orange alternative would be 
from the transition point, near Eloy, moving northward towards San Tan Valley, and 
would follow the North – South Freeway that is currently under study.  It is a multi-modal 
corridor and would include highway and rail.  It would have access to the Phoenix – 
Mesa Gateway Airport and follow existing corridors such as US 60 into the Phoenix 
area.  All of the alignments would join in Tempe and go towards the downtown Phoenix 
area and west valley.   
 
Mr. Lopez said in this last year they have been developing technical analysis on the 
final routes.  He said they are developing ridership numbers and anticipate 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 5 of 21 

approximately 3 million riders, with 16,000 riders per day.  They have been able to 
identify the magnitude of difference and are able to compare their plan with existing 
systems in other communities.  They are also developing cost estimates, which range 
between $3.5 billion to $10 billion.  The rail system would be approximately 120 miles.  
The yellow alternative would be the least expensive and the orange will be the most 
expensive.   
 
Mr. Lopez said they have been measuring the criteria to rank each alternative.  There 
are six major criteria that are measured.  One of criteria’s is the financial feasibility and 
public outreach has been a key component.  They attend community events and 
festivals and distribute passenger rail booklets at these events. The booklets are very 
informative and include such information such as travel times, cost, and ridership.  Their 
outreach has been successful.  They have not been able to attend any events in 
Florence, but are open to suggestions.  Their public outreach timeframe is from March 
through May.  Since the start of the public outreach on the three final alternatives, they 
have received 2,300 surveys.  He said they have an online tool and have hard copy 
surveys with them at the events they attend.  He said based on the surveys received, 
the preferred alternative is the yellow alternative.  
 
Mr. Lopez provided an overview of the questions posed on the survey and discussed 
the attribute questions.  He said they are also doing agency outreach.  They will develop 
the environmental document at the end of the fall and will ask for input and comments 
on the environmental document.  At the end of 2014, they will have the final EIS which 
will identify the preferred alternative between Tucson and Phoenix.  They will be 
seeking FRA and FTA approval with a record of decision.   
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired if he has looked at the number of employees who 
work at Arizona Department of Corrections and commute from the Mesa area, and if so, 
did they consider that number as one of the statistics.   
 
Mr. Lopez said they have considered travel demands and travel patterns.  He said 
demand patterns were done for commuters from the Town of Florence and Pinal County 
traveling to Maricopa County and to Pima County.  The travel demand patterns are in 
the travel demand model that is part of the study in developing ridership numbers.   
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired if they have received the numbers of vehicles that 
travel from US 60 to SH 79 and into Florence.   
 
Mr. Lopez responded that those figures are part of the travel demand model and those 
commuters have been accounted for.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith inquired if growth is considered.  He said growth is anticipated in the 
Superstition Vistas area.   
 
Mr. Lopez stated growth is a big element. They are looking at existing travel demands 
and the future demands of 2035.  The orange alternative loops and connects to the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 6 of 21 

Mesa Gateway Airport.  He said the Superstition Vistas Corridor is near the San Tan 
Valley and the airport, which the orange corridor would follow.  
  
Councilmember Celaya inquired how they give weight to the areas to allow for fairness 
in such areas where there is no population, such as the Superstition Vistas area, when 
taking into consideration the routes.  
 
Mr. Lopez stated they have a three pronged approach: 

 They have a technical analysis where they look at environmental, financial 
feasibility, ridership, and technical criteria.   

 They also have public outreach where they may want the fast route, regardless 
of any other factors or considerations.    

 They have agency input where they voice their preferences.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins said Mesa Gateway is one of the three major airports and he 
can’t imagine it not having a stop there.   
 
Mayor Rankin said the orange alternative is closest to Florence.  He asked Mr. Mark 
Eckhoff, Community Development Director, if it follows the Town’s preferred location of 
where the North - South Corridor should be.   
 
 Mr. Eckhoff stated their North – South Corridor alignment follows an aggregate 
assumption of where the North – South Corridor is.  He said ADOT has not finalized its 
exact location.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the green and yellow alternatives will go through populated 
areas, and the orange alternative will go through county land and areas that have little 
commercial and little residential.  He said it would seem that purchasing vacant land 
rather than imminent domain or altering freeways would be more cost effective.  He 
inquired how many of the surveys come from Maricopa County, Pinal County, and Pima 
County.  He also inquired if those submitting surveys from the metropolitan areas are 
swaying the decision. 
 
Mr. Lopez stated he can provide the total of surveys from each county.  He said they 
are one month into the three month outreach period.  The totals are preliminary.  He 
said the outreach will be completed at the end of May and they will have a better picture 
from the public.  The outreach is one part of the analysis.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how much emphasis ADOT has put in Pinal County at this time.   
 
Mr. Lopez said they were very limited on community events in the area as they were not 
able to identify events in the Pinal County area.  He said for this phase, they have only 
attended one event and that was at the Gila River Indian Community.  They have also 
attended an event in Marana, which is in Pima County.  In 2012, they attended events in 
Casa Grande, Maricopa, Coolidge, and Central Arizona College.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 7 of 21 

Mayor Rankin said ADOT may want to consider extending the period through the July 
4th weekend where a lot of communities have planned events to allow for public 
participation and community involvement. 
 
Mr. Lopez said ADOT will have their hearings in the fall for the environmental document 
for the final alternatives.  He said that is another opportunity for public and agency 
standpoint.   
 
Mayor Rankin said there needs to be more consideration for public participation from 
Pinal County and ADOT needs to extend the participation period.  He said the 
Superstition Vistas is on State Land.   
 
Vice-Mayor Smith said the orange alternative would go through the Superstition Vistas, 
which is on State Land. He said State Land should be setting aside land for right of 
ways for the North – South Corridor and the rail.  The alternative may be longer but 
would cost less if State Land and ADOT can work together.    
 
Discussion occurred on costs for the various alternatives. 
 
Mr. Lopez said one of the reasons for the high cost for the orange alternative is the 
Tempe and Mesa areas have grade separations due to following certain corridors, 
which cost more.   
 
Councilmember Celaya said ADOT needs to recognize the votes of the people.  He said 
the people in the middle of the area need to be considered, not only at the start and 
stop points.  
 
Councilmember Montaño said ADOT needs to consider those who work in corrections 
during shift changes between 8:00 pm and 10:00 pm.  He said those commuters could 
be potential riders and they need to be considered.  He said the amount of traffic that 
comes and leaves Florence is quite a bit, and it happens three times each, every day.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins said the green alternative does not have many places of 
where they can pick up riders since there is nothing in the area.  He said the orange 
alternative would have more ridership because they go through more communities.  The 
yellow alternative would still have more ridership than the green alternative.   
 
Councilmember Walter inquired if he will be sharing the total number of surveys 
received from each county. 
 
Mr. Lopez said he would be providing those figures.  
 
Councilmember Walter said the timeframe that ADOT chose to conduct the survey was 
not conducive to Florence, nor in the Town’s favor, as the winter visitors have left.   
 
Mayor Rankin asked Mr. Lopez to forward the Council’s recommendation to ADOT.  
   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 8 of 21 

Presentation of service award to Debbie Frias for 15 years of service to the Town 
of Florence. 
 
Mayor Rankin presented a service award to Debbie Frias for 15 years of service to the 
Town of Florence.  He thanked her for her service and commitment to the Town.   
 
Mr. Ernie Feliz, Grants and Assessment Manager, stated that Ms. Frias does a great job 
with assessments and goes the extra mile to ensure the assessment program runs 
smoothly.  He acknowledged her great customer services skills, especially in dealing 
with customers who are upset.  He said that those who work with her speak kindly of 
her and listed her admirable qualities.   
 
Presentation of service award and retirement gift to Jose Viola for 30 years of 
service to the Town of Florence.  
 
Mayor Rankin presented a service award and retirement gift to Jose Viola for 30 years 
of service to the Town of Florence.  He said that Mr. Viola began his employment with 
the Town on April 25, 1984.  He provided an overview of his employment history with 
the Town.  He said that Mr. Viola transferred to the Utilities Department because the 
Town contracted out the sanitation services, where Mr. Viola had worked throughout his 
tenure with the Town.  He thanked Mr. Viola for his service and wished him the best in 
his retirement. 
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, thanked Mr. Viola for his contributions to the 
Public Works Department and wished him the best, health, happiness, and a long life in 
his retirement.   
 
Mr. John Mitchell, Utilities Department, stated that Mr. Viola has been a joy in the 
department.  He appreciates Mr. Viola’s hard work, diligence, and leadership that he 
has brought to the Utilities Department.  He wished him the best.  
 
Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing Total 
Concept as the Business of the Month.  
 
Ms. Judy Hughes, Executive Director, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, stated 
that they are recognizing Total Concept Salon and Boutique.  She said they have been 
in business for over 30 years and hold the distinction of being the longest standing 
building located on Main Street.  They are very active in the community and give to civic 
organizations as well as school fund raising efforts.  They have three full time stylists 
that bring over 54 years of experience.  The owner, Suzanne Simons, has 30 years 
experience doing pedicures and manicures as well and stated that they are the ‘Steel 
Magnolias of Florence’ and have been the hub of the Town to hang out and see what’s 
going on.    
 
Ms. Hughes presented the Business of the Month Award to Total Concepts. 
 
Ms. Simon thanked everyone for the award and thanked all of their clients.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 9 of 21 

 
Presentation of the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s Annual Report 
 
Mr. Damon Anderson, Chairman, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, provided a 
presentation, which he outlined the following accomplishments: 

- New logo 
- 2013 Membership  

● Early in the year 2013, the Chamber took a hard look at its system and 
identified the need to revamp the system to be able to identify and track its 
members.  In March, they eliminated all members who were outside of 30 
days overdue for membership dues, which reduced its member total to 125 
paid members. 

● As of March 31, 2014, the membership total is 165.  They have grown 24% in 
one year and now have an accurate system for tracking membership.      
 The majority of these new members were signed by Judy Hughes, the 

new Executive Director, who started in December 2013, and made it her 
number one goal to be present in the community and and meet the public. 

- Florence Leads Group 
 Launched on February 5, 2014, to help area businesses and businesses 

that provide services to the Town of Florence develop strong community 
relationships through the exchange of business referrals and marketplace 
information.  

 Has its own Facebook page and logo 
 Conducts weekly meetings at Mount Athos Restaurant, where a 

continental breakfast and drink are served for a nominal fee 
 Allows one business per industry category 
 Guests are encouraged to attend two consecutive meetings prior to 

applying for membership 
 Membership is $35.00 and is non-refundable 
 Quarterly dues are $30.00, commencing at the time of application 

acceptance 
● Structure of Florence Leads 

 Mission Statement 
o The purpose of the Florence Leads group is to establish a consistent 

structured meeting environment conducive for businesses located in 
Florence; and for those businesses who conduct business within the 
town limits of Florence, to come together for the sole purpose of 
exchanging business referrals, marketplace information, and 
leadership training. Membership is limited to 30 people.   

 Eligibility  
o Prospective members must be able to demonstrate a high standard of 

quality, ethics, professionalism, and reliability.  Submitted applications 
will be voted on by membership and the Vice President by way of silent 
vote and is at the discretion of the committee.   

o One representative per industry classification will be admitted to the 
group. When a position becomes available notification to community 
will be provided and applications will be accepted.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 10 of 21 

● 2013 13th Annual Casino Night update 
 Held on July 28, 2013, at the Holiday Inn Express and Suites  
 Peter Koulouris and the chamber team organized an event that has been 

raved about all year.  
 Financial revenue breakdown:  

o We hosted 275+ locals.   
o Bar Sales     $  1,695 
o Sponsorship funds   $  6,300 
o Ticket Sales    $  7,600 
o Additional chips sold to players $     420 
o 50/50 tickets    $       80 
o Total revenue:     $16,095  

 Expenses for event: 
o Food costs    $  5,133 
o Dealers and tables cost   $  2,195  
o Total Expense    $  7,328 

 Total profit for even:    $  8,767 
● First Thursday events 
 Held at McFarland State Park to drive foot traffic into the downtown area 
 2013 totals 

o 282 participants  
o Total profit    $ 941.50 

 2014 totals to date (February – April) 
o No event in January 
o 127 participants 
o Total profit     $ 392.00 
o 8 months remaining 

● McFarland State Park  
 Article written about them in Sunset Magazine 
 Number of visitors in March 2013: 1082 
 Number of Visitors in March 2014: 1868 
 Increase of 786 visitors in one year; primarily due to write- ups in 

various articles 
 Donations in March 2013  $197.00 
 Donations in March 2014  $439.00 
 Increase in donations of $242.00 

● McFarland Park Gift Shop 
 Opened in September 2013 
 Supplies cost:    $5,671.64   
 Revenue generated:    $9,208.31  
 Net profit:     $3,536.67 

● Chamber Nation 
 In January 2014, the Chamber was granted a $5,000 sponsorship from 

the Florence IDA, which allowed the Chamber to purchase a new internet 
platform to offer our members a more cutting edge internet tool.  This tool 
has become the driving engine behind our new and improved Chamber.  

 Benefits of this new platform consist of: 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 11 of 21 

o A webpage presence for all members of the Chamber through 
Chamber Nation 

o Each member has the ability to create online coupons and discount 
campaigns to promote their business online to other members 

o Ability to pay membership dues directly online 
o A more enhanced search engine to find members and services that are 

needed 
o Members have access to Google analytics that provide the number of 

visitors to the website and what pages were visited throughout any 
given month 

o Full access to an event calendar where members can add their own 
special events to the calendar and promote themselves to the entire  
Chamber and to the greater internet world.   

o The Chamber of Commerce is extremely proud to have Chamber 
Nation as its new engine to drive new opportunities and tools to its 
members and look forward to further expanding this platform to its 
growing membership. 

o Provides a monthly report with critical data to show how the webpage 
is being used.  

● Chamber luncheons  
 Will book lunches calendared for the entire year 
 Will have high impact speakers 

● Budget 
 July 2014 – March 2014 Budget $84,850.87  
 Florence’s contribution  $32,500.00 

● Marketing expenses  
● Chamber NOI 
 $16,135 in the positive 
 Explained savings and have been conservative in spending 
 Explained operating expenses 

● Variables 
 The Chamber saved $6,500 in labor by not employing an Executive 

Director for from mid-September through November 2013.  
 The Chamber reduced employee hours from July through October 2013, 

as its first and second quarter checks were not received until October 
2013, saving approximately $6,000 in labor that they had budgeted to 
spend. 

 The Chamber had not budgeted to receive a $5,000 sponsorship from the 
Florence IDA that would cover all costs for its migration to Chamber 
Nation for the entire first year.  This covered the initial set up fees as well 
as the fees for all members each month to maintain the platform  

 The Chamber is very pleased to see the success of its gift Shop but have 
made far more profit than it had anticipated and look forward to seeing 
more growth in the future. 

 
Presentation of the 2014 Citizen Survey 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 12 of 21 

Mr. Jess Knudson, Assistant Town Manager, stated 1100 surveys were sent to Florence 
households in December 2013 and 466 surveys were returned, which exceed the 
national average of 25%.  He said the results represent the response of approximately 
914 residents.  The margin of error is +/- 4% and the the past survey results are 
available on the Town’s website.  He said the handout also provided the results from 
previous years.  He provided an overview of the following: 

- Survey Structure 
● Page 1 of survey 
 Questions that reflect how the residents generally feel about Florence  
 What they see as the positives/negatives 

● Page 2 of survey 
 Services that Florence provides 

● Page 3 
 Demographic information questions  
 Policy type questions 

● Page 4 
 Demographic information questions  
 Resident can provide their comments and other feedback 

 
Mr. Knudson provided the results to the following questions: 

- How would you describe Florence as a place to live? 
● 69% Above average 
● 23% Average 
● 8% Below average 

- Do you feel safe and secure in your neighborhood? 
● 88% Above average 
● 2%  Below average 

- Amount of crime in Florence 
● 52% Above average 

- What the top likes are  for Florence 
● Climate 
● Quiet, friendly people 
● Historical character 
● Small town feel 

- What are the top dislikes are for Florence 
● Shopping opportunities  
● Job opportunities 

- Best Service Levels  
● Fire 
● Professionalism of Library employees 
● Professionalism of Senior Center employees 

- Worst Service Levels  
● Scores fell within average; however, they were scored the lowest 
 Water Taste 
 Street repair and maintenance 
 Maintenance of downtown Florence 
 Channel 11 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 13 of 21 

 Recreation facilities 
 Stormwater drainage 
 Variety of recreational programs 

- How would you rate the services of the Town, in comparison with Pinal County, 
the State, and Federal government? 
● 1st - Florence ranked first 
● 2nd - Pinal County  
● 3rd - State 
● 4th - Federal  

- Had the resident had contact with a Town employee within the last six months? 
● 62% - Yes 
 83% said the employees were above average in being responsive 
 84% said the employees were above average in being knowledgeable 
 85% said the employees were above average in being courteous 

● 85% indicated an overall above average impression  
● 4% indicated below average impression  

- How you rate the actions of the Town Council? 
● Majority of response said not sure 
● Good to average was the next highest scores 

- Are you satisfied with the services provided by Right Away Disposal (RAD)? 
● 77%  Satisfied 
● 11% Not satisfied 
● 12% Not sure 

- Do you support the annexation of Magic Ranch, Crestfield Manor, and Wild 
Horse Estates? 
● 32% Yes 
● 17% No 
● 51% Undecided 

- Should the Town support the incorporation efforts of San Tan Valley? 
● 24% Yes 
● 21% No 
● 56% Unsure 

- Should a medical marijuana dispensary be allowed to open in the Town of 
Florence? 
● 21% Yes 
● 60% No 
● 19% Not Sure 

- Should the Town spend money on the restoration of historic buildings in the 
downtown? 
● 67% Yes 
● 15% No 
● 18% Not sure 

- Are you in favor of the Florence Fire Department providing ambulance service? 
● 37% Yes 
● 23% No 
● 40% Need more information 

- Do you support the North End Framework Vision Plan (Territory Square)? 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 14 of 21 

● 14% Yes 
●   8% No 
● 78% Not sure 

- Where do you get the majority of your information about Florence? 
● 49% Word of Mouth 
● 30% Newspaper 
● 34% use Facebook or Twitter 

- Demographics 
● High percentage of respondents are retired 
● 77% of respondents are married 
● Equal split between mail and females 
● 57% are full time residents 
● 43% are part-time residents 
● Average age of respondents is 67 years old 
● Average length of time that people lived in Florence is 10 years 

 
Mr. Knudson stated the comments were included in the survey results exactly as they 
were submitted, including grammatical errors.   
 
Mr. Hawkins said 81% of the respondents are retired.  He would like to get feedback 
from younger residents and those who are currently employed.   
 
Mr. Knudson said it is a challenge with surveys.  The surveys were sent out randomly to 
the Town residents and those that are retired generally have more time to fill out 
surveys.   
 
Councilmember Celaya agreed with Councilmember Hawkins.  He said that there was 
previous discussion on asking how comfortable the responders were with the 
understanding of the issue that they were giving their opinion on.   
 
Mr. Knudson said the survey included an option to choose “not sure” if they did not have 
an understanding of the subject.  He said it may indicate that educating the public is 
important.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated a schedule of programming needs to be added to 
Channel 11 to let the viewers know when the various meetings will be aired.   
 
Councilmember Walter said the Town Code needs to be updated and the Town has to 
look at ways to attract businesses, since they will generate revenue.  The Town is also 
looking at annexation, since rooftops bring in businesses.  She would like staff to 
research using HURF funds for work in the Florence Gardens area for road paving, and 
Impact Fees for the infill lots.  It will be helpful if staff would respond to the Council 
regarding the issues.   
 
Mayor Rankin suggested that the surveys be sent to those on the registered voter by 
area.  It would provide for a more diverse response.  It is disappointing that only 8% of 
the responses received were from the core. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 15 of 21 

 
Mr. Knudson said that an equal number of surveys were sent to all areas.    
 
Mayor Rankin said he felt said some of the questions seemed irrelevant, such as the 
type of televisions that the residents have.  
 
Mr. Knudson explained the rationale for the television question and stated it is in 
relationship with the type of equipment upgrades that the Town will be doing in the near 
future and how it will affect Channel 11 and those who view the channel. 
 
Mayor Rankin does not like the automated telephone system and would prefer that a 
live person answer the telephone.  He said he agrees with the comments regarding 
RAD and believes there are issues with bulk trash pickup that need to be addressed.  
He said there are comments that he does not agree with; however, he accepts them.  
 
Councilmember Celaya asked that the following question be added to the next 
questionnaire:  Are you willing to accept a tax increase in order to provide some of the 
services that you are requesting? 
 
ADJOURN TO A SPECIAL MEETING 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to adjourn to a Special Meeting.  
 
RESOLUTION NO. 1434-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1434-14 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
PROPOSING AN EXTENSION OF THE ALTERNATIVE EXPENDITURE LIMITATION. 
 
Mr. Mike Farina, Finance Director, stated that two public hearings have been held, as 
required.  The resolution is before Council for approval, which would place the question 
on the primary election ballot asking for voter approval to extend the use of the 
Alternative Expenditure Limitation as part of the budget process.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1434-14.  
 
ADJOURN FROM A SPECIAL MEETING 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to adjourn from a Special Meeting.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 16 of 21 

CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects 
at the time the agenda item is called.   
 
Resolution No. 1433-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1433-14 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FLORENCE FIREFIGHTER’S PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN.  
 
Resolution No. 1436-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1436-14 by 
title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ORDERING THE ABANDONMENT OF RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENTS ADJACENT 
TO THE CCA PROPERTY IN FLORENCE, ARIZONA AS DESCRIBED WITHIN THE 
ATTACHED EXHIBITS 1, 2 and 3. 
 
*Approval of Sun West Contractors for improvements at Well 3B, in an amount 
not to exceed $1,576,264.67.  
 
*Approval of the resignation of Barry R. Reed from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  
 
*Approval of the March 3, March 17, and March 26, 2014 Town Council Minutes. 
 
*Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
November 20, 2013 Library Advisory Board minutes 
October 24, 2013 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board minutes. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of Item 9a.   
 
Resolution No. 1433-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1433-14 by 
title only.   
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FLORENCE FIREFIGHTER’S PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 17 of 21 

Mr. Scott Barber, Human Resources Director, stated the resolution will amend the Town 
of Florence, Part-time Firefighters’ Profit Sharing Plan.  The Town of Florence Part-time 
Firefighters” Profit Sharing Plan has been in existence for a very long time, having been 
initially established to provide a benefit to volunteer firefighters.  When the Town moved 
to a Fire Department staffed with both full-time and part-time employees, the Plan 
evolved and has been maintained to provide a benefit for part-time firefighters.  The 
program required a six year membership vesting period.  In 2010, it changed to a two 
year 100% vesting period.  He said discussions have occurred with representatives who 
have served on the pension board to change to 100% vesting schedule immediately.  
The Town fills their full time vacancies from the part-time group and makes the tenure of 
the part-time individuals in that group shorter.  They also want to maximize the benefit 
for the employee.   
 
Councilmember Walter asked what the percentage is that the Town will be contributing 
to the part time profit sharing plan.   
 
Mr. Barber said the percentages don’t change.  Participants contribute 5.25% of gross 
wages, and the Town contributes 5%.  This will not impact the Town financially.   
 
Councilmember Walter inquired if they are not part of the Arizona Public Safety 
Retirement System. 
 
Mr. Barber said the part-time firefighters are not part of the Arizona Public Safety 
Retirement System. 
 
Councilmember Walter said there are other issues with social security, percentages into 
retirements, and other items.  She stated that it may be best if this item were tabled.   
 
Mr. Barber said those issues have no bearing on the item at hand.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins said the social security and retirement issues have already 
been addressed.   
 
Councilmember Walter said that it needs to be further discussed.   
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, stated the direction from Council and Human 
Resources was to follow the rules under State Statute that was given to the Town for 
municipalities for fighters that should have been in place previously.  The Town is in the 
process of moving forward on this.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if the two items are intertwined. 
 
Mr. Barber said the social security issue and the Part-time Firefighter Profit Sharing 
Plan are separate items.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how many employees this will affect. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 18 of 21 

Mr. Barber said there are 12 new part-time firefighters.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the proposal benefits both the Town and employees.  
 
Mr. Barber said that it doesn’t benefit the Town, except for the perspective that it 
recognizes the value that the individuals bring to the department and to the citizens.  He 
said the Town could not do constant manning without the contribution of the part-time 
firefighters, and this is one way to recognize the value of the contribution.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the employees will receive a benefit to the part-time staff over 
the existing program that the Town currently has.   
 
Mr. Barber stated yes, they become vested immediately upon their membership. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what happens to the money that is in the fund. 
 
Mr. Barber said the money that is in the trust for the profit sharing plan is used 
exclusively for those purposes only.   
 
Councilmember Montaño inquired if the firefighter can withdraw both their contribution 
and the Town’s contribution when they resign. 
 
Mr. Barber said they would be able to withdraw both.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if they have met with the Board regarding this matter. 
 
Mr. Barber said they did meet with the pension board and discussed the vesting 
schedule.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there are any other departments with employees who are 
100% vested upon employment with the Town.  
 
Mr. Barber stated other employees are not similarly situated.  He said the other 
employees are covered by Statute under the Arizona State Retirement System or Public 
Safety Personnel Retirement System.    
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if this item is time sensitive.   
 
Mr. Barber said the item is not time sensitive; however, there is no reason to delay.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins said that it seems beneficial to the employees. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1433-14. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 19 of 21 

Ordinance No. 607-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 607-14 by title  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED 
STATUTES AND AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE EXISTING TOWN LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
ARIZONA, AND PROVIDING FOR A RESCISSION OF SUCH ANNEXATION IF THE 
ANNEXATION IS CHALLENGED (REDSTONE RANCH ANNEXATION NO. 2013-03) 
(First reading held April 7, 2014). 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the three items on the 
agenda pertain to the the Redstone Ranch annexation.  The area consists of 
approximately 30 acres and is located adjacent to Johnson Ranch estates.  He said the 
second item is to apply the comparable zoning, which is required by State Statute.  The 
third item is to change the zoning to R-16, which is single family residential zoning 
district.  The property owner is Perry Mathis.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 607-14.  
 
Ordinance No. 608-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 608-14 by title 
only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE “TOWN OF FLORENCE ZONING MAP” BY CHANGING THE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND FROM PINAL 
COUNTY GENERAL RURAL (GR) ZONING DISTRICT TO TOWN OF FLORENCE 
SINGLE– RESIDENTIAL RANCHETTE (R1-R) ZONING DISTRICT (REDSTONE 
RANCH ANNEXATION INITIAL/COMPARABLE ZONING) (First reading held April 7, 
2014). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 608-14.  
 
Ordinance No. 609-14:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Ordinance No. 609-14 by title 
only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE FROM SINGLE– RESIDENTIAL RANCHETTE (R1-



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 20 of 21 

R) ZONING DISTRICT TO SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R1-6) ON THE 
REDSTONE RANCH PROPERTY LOCATED IN A PORTION OF THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 10 EAST, GILA AND 
SALT RIVER MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AKA,APN 206-01-0230 (PZC-
41-13-ZC) (First reading held April 7, 2014). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 609-14.  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

There was no Manager’s Report. 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, said that she and her husband Larry have been 
appointed to report back to Florence Gardens what transpired at the Council meetings.  
She will include written reports to the Florence Gardens Board.   
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Celaya thanked the Utilities Department for their assistance in a water 
break at the Pinal County complex.  
 
Councilmember Montaño said Florence was presented very well at Country Thunder.  
He said Florence had a good opportunity as to what Florence is and what it can offer. 
 
Councilmember Walter thanked Mr. Knudson for his presentation and the residents who 
submitted the surveys.  She asked staff to provide to Council the percentages that the 
Town contributes to all departments/classification retirements prior to the upcoming 
budget work session.  She said the reason that she wanted to postpone the retirement 
item is because there are issues going on pertaining to the 218 Agreement.  She said 
there are employees who had 5.2% of their wages withheld for years and they will not 
get their contributions returned.  She said there are classifications where some earn a 
percentage and others earn a stipend.  Stipends are pensionable and are required by 
FSLA law to be paid an overtime rate, but yet it is separate from the salary.  She said 
due to the concerns, she felt that it would be best to address them at the public work 
session.  She thanked those who were recognized. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins said the Main Street Park looks very nice. 
 
Vice-Mayor thanked the Parks and Recreation staff for the Eggstravangza event. 
 
Mayor Rankin said the Easter event was great and had a great turnout.  He said there  
was an accident on SH 287.  He said ADOT needs to do something.  Florence has to be 
in prevention mode.  He said the area is busy and he will be attending ADOT meetings 
to let them know what is happening.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2014 
Page 21 of 21 

Councilmember Hawkins asked the status of the Pinal County building that burned 
down on Main Street.  He inquired if they can move forward on the demolition of the 
building.   
 
Councilmember Celaya provided an update and said a contractor will be demolishing 
the building.  He said paperwork has been forwarded to the Pinal County Finance 
Department.   He suggested that the Easter Egg Hunt be separated by age groups.     
 
Councilmember Walter said there is a Magma Dam tour on April 30, 2014 and asked 
that the information be placed on the website.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Walter, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 8:33 pm.  
 
_________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on April 21, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 23, 2014, AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:05 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Celaya, Hawkins, Walter, Woolridge 
Absent: Smith, Montaño 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes     
April 23, 2014 
Page 1 of 8        

On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to declare an emergency and hold an Executive Session for the purpose of 
discussion of the public body regarding personnel matters in accordance with A.R.S. 
§38-431.03 (A)(1). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn from Executive Session.   

   
WORK SESSION TO REVIEW THE 2014/2015 BUDGET 
 
Mr. Charles A. Montoya, Town Manager, stated that personnel issues pertaining to 
salaries will be addressed, and he assured the Council that staff has adhered to State 
Statutes, Federal Labor Standards Act, and Department of Labor.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, and Lisa Garcia, 
Deputy Town Manger/Town Clerk, will provide a presentation regarding an arts program 
to the Council at the May 5, 2014, Town Council meeting.  He provided a brief overview 
of what the Arts Program entails and the board or commission that will be created.  He 
said staff is requesting to set aside 1% of the new capital projects that the Town does 
every year for the Arts Program.   
 
Mr. Montoya said a compensation study was completed and Mr. Scott Barber, Human 
Resources Director, is currently working on the recommendations.  He said staff is 
recommending a maximum 4% salary increase.  He said there are some positions that 
may have market adjustments.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that staff is expecting the final proposals for the potential library, 
aquatic center, and recreation center on the 40 acres adjacent to Town Hall.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired which fiscal years the project will be expensed from. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes     
April 23, 2014 
Page 2 of 8        

Mr. Montoya said the project will be budgeted from the upcoming fiscal year. He 
explained what revenues will be utilized.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if bonding will be necessary. 
 
Mr. Montoya said there may be the potential for the Town to bond $4 million.  The cost 
is dependent on the amenities.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated in the past, the Town operated as an organization that 
had funding prior to the beginning of the year to take care of the operations throughout 
the year.  It appears that the Town is moving to operate as an organization that is 
dependent on the revenues that will come in throughout the year to pay for the 
expenses that it will have.   
 
Mr. Montoya said this year, the Town will have a zero base budget.  Department Heads 
evaluated their current budgets and had to justify everything in their line items.  If it 
could not be justified or if prior year costs did not meet what was budgeted, it was cut 
from the budget.  He said they are not planning for the revenues they have, they are 
planning for the services.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired about the $20,000 that is included in the Manager’s 
budget for other expenses; however, it does not have a defined purpose.   
 
Mr. Montoya said $20,000 is set aside for unanticipated expenses.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired what increases the operating budget will have. 
 
Mr. Montoya said increases were included for energy costs, salary and benefit 
increases, or justifiable costs for servicing of equipment.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the budgets for police and fire were increased in the event that 
the annexations go through. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the budgets remained status quo.  He discussed funding and 
said the monies have been set aside, according to the consultant’s recommendation.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired about the $3.5 million transfer of the fund balance and 
what it will be used for.   
 
Mr. Montoya said the funds did not go to any one specific department.  They are one 
time funds that went to capital projects.  Approximately $1.6 million was a settlement 
that was returned to the Town and the remainder is excess revenues over expenditures 
that are one time fund balance transfers that the Town will not need in the general 
operating budget.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired what the two new departments will be. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes     
April 23, 2014 
Page 3 of 8        

Mr. Montoya stated they are fleet and facilities.   
 
Discussion occurred on the past and current funding.   
 
Mr. Mike Farina, Finance Director, clarified the amount of money that was transferred 
out of the general fund into the capital projects fund and said the correct amount is 
$1,067,000. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what the fund balance is. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that amount that remains in the fund balance is approximately $7.3 
million.  He said there is approximately $2 million that is set aside in capital costs that 
has not been allocated and can be used for emergencies or other projects that Council 
may elect to fund.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired if the Town still has a fund balance in the Sanitation 
Fund should the Town elect to restart sanitation services.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated there is approximately $1.6 million in the Sanitation Fund.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if staff anticipates any expenses to the Sanitation Fund.  
 
Mr. Montoya said there are general costs allocated for an individual that is working in 
sanitation who works with RAD.  Staff is anticipating a minimal increase in the budget to 
deal with bulk trash.   
 
Councilmember Celaya stated Council retreats were held in the past to discuss things 
that Council wanted and to make plans for those items within the budget.  A Council 
retreat was not done this year.   He said discussion for a transfer station occurred 
during the transition of sanitation services.  He said it would beneficial to invest in a 
transfer station. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that in the current budget and upcoming budget, funds have been 
allocated to do a transfer station in the north area.  Currently, residents can take their 
bulk trash to the transfer station and must provide a copy of their utility bill.  In addition, 
staff is looking for a location in the Florence core where residents can drop off their bulk 
trash and it would be collected weekly.  
 
Mayor Rankin suggested that a location be found for the Florence Gardens and 
Caliente areas for them to dispose of their bulk trash as well.  
 
Councilmember Walter inquired about the increase in the Municipal Court “Other” line 
item.   
 
Mr. Farina stated that the increase is due to the jail fees that have increased due to 
incarcerations. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes     
April 23, 2014 
Page 4 of 8        

Discussions occurred on various line items within the Municipal Court budget.  
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired about the increase in the Health, Accident and Life 
Insurance line items throughout the budget, specifically in the Human Resources 
Department. 
 
Mr. Farina stated that the increase in the Human Resources budget is due to the 
Human Resources Director transitioning from a contracted employee to a Town 
employee, at which time he did not receive health insurance.  He said with regards to 
the other budgets, the changes in amounts are due to changes in coverage for the 
employees in those departments.   
 
Discussion occurred on employees who are transitioning from contractual status to 
employee status, associated costs, and benefits. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that there is a 20% savings 
in salaries along with not having to pay benefits for one year while the employee is 
contracted through SmartWorks.  She said at end of the one year, the individual has the 
option of remaining with SmartWorks or be employed through the Town.   
 
Councilmember Walter inquired about increase in the Parks Maintenance line item. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the Town is increasing the maintenance to the parks as well as 
including the garden area at the Brunenkant Building and Padilla Park.   
     
Mayor Rankin inquired about special events.  
 
Mr. Farina said the budget includes an increase of $40,000 for special events; $20,000 
is under the professional service line item in the Special Events budget, as well as 
$20,000 in the recreation budget.   
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired about the increase in the training and development line 
item in the Fire Administration Budget. 
 
Mr. Farina stated that they received a $40,000 increase due to the agreement with 
Central Arizona College (CAC) for training; however, CAC will pay the Town $40,000 for 
the use of the fire facility, which appears as revenue in the budget.  The end result will 
be a net zero cost to the Town.   
 
Discussion occurred on salaries for the Fire Department, part-time staff, and call 
volumes for Fire Station #1. 
 
Mr. Farina explained that all of the part-time firefighter salaries were transferred to Fire 
Station #1, as well as being increased by $120,000.   
 
Mr. Peter Zick, Fire Chief, discussed the benefits for using the TRV and the amount of 
calls that the Town receives from the correctional facilities.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes     
April 23, 2014 
Page 5 of 8        

 
Mr. Scott Barber, Human Resources Director, discussed contribution percentages that 
are paid by the Town on behalf of the employees in retirement or social security.  The 
Town has been informed of the percentages for the new fiscal year.  He explained the 
percentages, how the rates are set for each of the classifications, and the differences of 
each.   
 
Mr. Barber stated with regards to the Town’s contribution levels, sworn fire department 
employees are not contributing to social security; which is the main difference between 
them and all other employees who are paying 6.2% of their compensation into social 
security. The percentages for Arizona State Retirement System employees are 
actuarially set every year based on the entire population of all individuals enrolled in the 
plan.     
 
Mr. Barber stated that the public safety retirement system takes into consideration the 
demographic information on the individuals that are enrolled in that specific plan.  He 
said it can impact the contribution rate significantly.  The employer contribution is set by 
Statute.  Currently, the employee contribution rate is 10.35% and will go to 11.05% next 
year.   The Town has no control on the increases or percentages set.  
 
Mr. Barber explained the other pay and benefit issues that need to be considered when 
doing comparisons. Such benefits include: 
- Health benefits 

● All employees receive the same package; however State Law requires the Town 
to secure and pay for cancer insurance for the firefighters as well. 

- Vacation and sick leave 
● Same benefits; however the accrual rate for the Fire Department is computed 

differently to adjust the work schedules (24/7) 
- Holiday Pay 

● Town has 11 paid holidays 
● Difference in holiday pay because of work schedule 

- Retirement eligibility 
● Arizona State Retirement System 
 Used to be 80 points 
 Recent Changes: 

 Age 55 with 30 years of service 
 Age 60 with 20 years of service 
 Age 62 with 10 years of service 
 Age 65 

● Public Safety Retirement System (Police and Fire) 
 20 year retirement 
 Deferred Retirement Program 

- Work schedules 
● Standard Employee: 40 hour work week 
● Sworn Police Officers: 4 -10 hour days 
● Fire Department schedule is 48/96 schedule  
 Allows for secondary employment 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes     
April 23, 2014 
Page 6 of 8        

 Town does not deduct for sleep time or meal time even though it is allowed to 
 12 hours of overtime has been built into schedule, as allowed. 

● Extra pay and benefits 
 Special Assignments, Certification or Standby Pay is very limited 
 Standby pay is limited to IT and Public Works 
 Stipend is paid for paramedic certification  

 Based on 10% of the midpoint of the assigned pay range for the employee 
classification 

● Paid uniform and uniform allowance 
 Public Works, Parks and Recreation, Utilities, Police and Fire receive this 

benefit 
● Training 
 Both public safety departments have significant resources dedicated to 

ongoing training 
 Due to excessive required training to maintain levels of certifications 

 
Mr. Barber stated that it is important when focusing on one issue to focus on total 
compensation when doing comparisons.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that it was never explained to the Council that the Fire Department 
could do shifts rather than 24 hour periods when their status became full time.   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that she will review the 
minutes to clarify what was relayed to the Council.   She explained the different plans 
and various tiers that were discussed and the rationale for choosing the existing 
schedule.  She said staff knew that at some point the schedule would need to be 
reviewed.  She said that rest periods are crucial and are said staff is receiving enough 
sleep at this time.  Peter Zick, Fire Chief, has not requested any modifications to the 
schedule.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired about the DROP Program and contributions. 
 
Mr. Barber stated when an individual enters the DROP Program the retirement 
contribution stops and the employee’s retirement benefit goes into the DROP account.  
He said the employer no longer makes retirement contributions for that individual as 
well as keeping the employee’s contribution.   
 
Discussion occurred on retirement, social security, and changes in eligibility.   
 
Mr. Mike Farina, Finance Director, discussed the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  He 
said the packet that Council has received is in draft format and will have a different 
appearance once approved and is in its final format.  The document contains the current 
CIP that was adopted for 2014-2018, along with the proposed CIP for 2015-219.  He 
explained that the adopted CIPs were balanced, meaning that the project cost equaled 
the project funding.  Funding for the current projects anticipated unknown financing and 
financing that was yet to be determined.  He said costs were also covered by 
anticipated impact fees.  He said the projected impact fees are less than what is 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes     
April 23, 2014 
Page 7 of 8        

anticipated for those projects.  He said some of the projects needed to be shifted to 
ensure the budget is balanced and the 2016 planned budget is also balanced.  He 
discussed that the plans for projects are outlined for the next five years and financing 
including unfunded projects are listed.   
 
Mr. Farina explained how the CIP is compiled and how it is broken down by section. He 
provided examples how the projects were listed.   
 
Councilmember Walter inquired if the 1% for the Arts Program is included in the CIP. 
 
Mr. Farina said the 1% for the Arts Program will come out of the capital projects fund.   
 
Councilmember Walter said that the cemetery is not aesthetically pleasing.  In the CIP, 
there is a project for repaving some of the road and add fencing. She inquired if grass or 
any type of beautification will be added to the cemetery. 
 
Mayor Rankin said that it is a desert cemetery.  He said Florence does not have 
perpetual plots. 
 
Councilmember Celaya stated that not all citizens are willing to pay for the 
improvements.  He said there have been discussions in the past regarding privatization 
of the cemetery; however, it would increase the costs for those wanting to be buried in 
the cemetery.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins explained that Florence’s rates are some of the most 
reasonable rates in the state.  Many people are on limited income and it meets their 
needs.  He has not heard any negative comments about the cemetery; however, he has 
heard many positive comments. 
 
Discussion occurred on possible improvements for the cemetery. 
 
Councilmember Celaya inquired about transfers in to help with the fund balance.   
 
Mr. Montoya explained transfers in and out of the fund balance. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Town has fiscal policies in place.  In the next year, the Town 
Manager and Finance Director will review the polices and bring back different rules to 
Council on how the Town will proceed. 
 
Discussion occurred on the approved budgets for CIPs, along with the proposed 
budget.  
 
Mr. Farina said debt service was considered to cover some of the costs for the projects 
in the current approved CIP. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if provisions have been made in the proposed budget with 
regards to condemnation.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes     
April 23, 2014 
Page 8 of 8        

 
Mr. Montoya stated that there are no provisions in the budget for the condemnation.  
The Town may have to seek outside financing, depending on the amount of the property 
if the condemnation did occur.   
 
Mr. James E. Mannato, Town Attorney, explained the condemnation process. 
 
Discussion occurred on condemnation, funding of a condemnation, and if it would affect 
the expenditure limitation.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if a presentation will be done regarding Highway User Revenue 
Fund (HURF) funds. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the Town has very limited funding regarding HURF. The HURF 
projects have been included in the CIP.  One time funding has been added to assist 
with roads throughout the Town.  He said Mr. Farina will come before the Council at a 
later time regarding bond funding and facilities districts in the Anthem area for road 
improvements.      
 
Discussion occurred on the listing of all CIP projects and projects to be funded by 
HURF.   
 
Mr. Montoya stated that staff will provide a list of all CIP projects.   
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, asked for the roads in Caliente to be done.   
 
 ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 6:48 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on April 23, 2014, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 









































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
11a. 

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director  
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 606-13 

Rural Residential Equestrian Subdivision 
                   (PZC-34-13-ORD) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

 

Rural Residential Equestrian Subdivision (RRES) 
Ordinance No. 606-13 

May 19, 2014 
1 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 606-13 for the Rural Residential Equestrian 
Subdivision (RRES) Zoning District. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence requests approval of the following application: 

PZC-34-13-ORD: An Ordinance of the Town of Florence, Pinal 
County, Arizona, amending the Town of Florence Code of 
Ordinances, Title XV Land Usage, Chapter 150 Development 
Code, Section 150.031 Defined Words, Section 150.047 District 
Use Regulations Table (A) and establishing a new Rural 
Residential Equestrian Subdivision (RRES) Zoning District Section. 

 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS: 
 
The goal of this effort was to have a new Town Zoning District in place to apply to 
the Wild Horse Estates area should the Arizona Farms annexation that includes 
this area be successful.  Staff has worked diligently to ensure the new zoning 
requirements for this area will help preserve the semi-rural lifestyle in this special 
enclave, while also complying with state statutes pertaining to comparable zoning 
requirements for annexed areas. 
 
The RRES Zoning District was intended to provide comparable zoning for the 
residents of Wild Horse Estates.  Per Town Council direction, staff has 
researched and created many different options pertaining to RRES Zoning 
District and furthermore, staff has continually provided the opportunity for 



 

Rural Residential Equestrian Subdivision (RRES) 
Ordinance No. 606-13 

May 19, 2014 
2 

 

members of the public and Wild Horse Estates property owners to contribute in 
formulating the framework of the proposed zoning district. 
 
The current ordinance was presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
March 20, 2014, and subsequently forwarded to the Town Council with an 
unanimous favorable recommendation.   
 
Ordinance No. 606-13 was recommended as the comparable zoning for Wild 
Horse Estates for the following reasons: 
  

 Allows two horses per lot, which is consistent with current Pinal County 
Zoning; 

 Allows site built homes and manufactured homes, reflecting current zoning 
and existing conditions; 

 The proposed ordinance has a provision for FFA, 4-H or similar, which is 
consistent with the subdivision’s CC&R’s; and 

 The proposed zoning is no more intense than the current County Zoning. 
 
Please note that this new zoning district will only be applied on the Wild Horse   
Estates area if this area is successfully annexed. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Town Staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona 
Revised Statutes regarding public participation. Exceeding statutory 
requirements, public notices for the various Planning and Zoning Commission 
and Town Council meetings has been mailed to all property owners who reside 
within the Wild Horse Estates subdivision.  There have also been multiple 
Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council meetings pertaining to the 
proposed ordinance, including a Planning and Zoning Commission Work 
Session.  
 
Going forward, the tentative schedule for Planning and Zoning/Town Council 
Meetings on this case going forward is as follows: 
 
March 20, 2014  Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting (action) 
 
May 5, 2014   1st Town Council (public hearing) 
 
May 19, 2014  2nd Town Council (action) 
 
All meetings will be held at Town Hall Council Chambers – 775 North Main 
Street.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 



 

Rural Residential Equestrian Subdivision (RRES) 
Ordinance No. 606-13 

May 19, 2014 
3 

 

 
This request has no direct or specific financial impacts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission forwarded a unanimous favorable 
recommendation on this ordinance to the Town Council. 
 
Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 606-13 for the Rural Residential Equestrian 
Subdivision (RRES) Zoning District. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
Ordinance No. 606-13 
 
 
 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 606-13  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, TITLE XV LAND USAGE, CHAPTER 150 
DEVELOPMENT CODE, SECTION 150.047 DISTRICT USE 
REGULATIONS TABLES (A) AND ESTABLISHING A NEW RURAL 
RESIDENTIAL EQUESTRIAN SUBDIVISION (RRES) ZONING 
DISTRICT SECTION (PZC-34-13-ORD). 

 
 WHEREAS, development codes are designed to protect the health, safety and 
general welfare of the public and are subject to modifications to ensure that codes are 
current and meet the needs of the local community; and  
  

WHEREAS, municipal Zoning District designations are utilized when applying 
comparable zoning to newly annexed properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence has proposed this ordinance to create a 

comparable Zoning District to the Pinal County MHS zoning in place for the Wild Horse 
Estates subdivision contained within the proposed Arizona Farms annexation area; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Florence Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a work 
session and public hearings on this ordinance and have sent the Mayor and Council of 
the Town of Florence a favorable recommendation on this proposed ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1.  That the recitals contained in this ordinance are hereby adopted and 
incorporated herein as findings of fact of the Town Council. 

 
Section 2.    That if any word, sentence, paragraph, clause, phrase or other 

provision of this ordinance is for any reason deemed to be unconstitutional or otherwise 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining words, sentences, paragraphs, clauses, phrases or other provisions of 
this ordinance, or the validity of this ordinance as an entirety, it being the legislative 
intent that this ordinance shall stand, notwithstanding the invalidity of any word, 
sentence, paragraph, clause, phrase or other provision. 

 
Section 3.    That noted portions of Chapter 150, Section 150.047 District Use 

Regulations Tables (A) within Title XV Land Usage of the Town Code of Ordinances are 
hereby amended and shall read as follows. In addition, a new Rural Residential 
Equestrian Subdivision (RRES) Code Section is hereby established and integrated into 
Chapter 150 as noted below. 
§ 150.047 DISTRICT USE REGULATIONS TABLES. 
 



(A) Residential zoning district use regulations. 
 
P=Permitted N=Not Permitted C=Conditional T=Temporary Uses 
 

Use RA-10 RA-4 R1-R RRES R1-18 R-1-6 R-2 MFR MHS PUD

Agricultural buildings and 
structures 

P P C P N N N N N N 

Accessory buildings and uses P P P P P P P P P P 
Bed and breakfast C C C N N N N N N N 
Boarding or lodging house C C C N N N C C N C 
Cemetery C C N N N N N N N C 
Condominium N N N N N N P P N C 
Continuing care facility C C N N N N N C N N 
Convent C C C N C C C P C C 
Duplex N N N N N N P P N C 
Daycare center and/or nursery C C C N C C N C N C 
Dwelling, multi-family N N N N N N P P N C 
Dwelling, single-family P P P P P P P P N P 
Farm P P N N N N N N N N 
Golf course C C C C C C C C C C 
Guest home, detached P P C N N N N N N N 

 
Greenhouse and/or nursery C C N C N N N N N N 
Group home C C C C C C C C C C 
Home for the aged or nursing 
home 

C C N C N N N C C C 

Home occupation P P P P P P P P P P 

Manufactured home C C C P C N N N P N 
Medical marijuana operations, 
including medical marijuana 
dispensary offsite cultivation 
locations, medical marijuana 
dispensaries and medical 
marijuana infusion facilities 
(medical marijuana designated 
caregiver cultivation locations 
and qualifying patient cultivation 
locations per applicable Town 
and State Department of Health 
regulations) 

N N N N N N N N N N 

Model home complex and/or 
sales office 

T T T T T T T T T T 

Mobile home N N N N N N N N N N 
Orphanage C C N N N N N P N N 
Park, playground and community 
owned buildings 

P P P P P P P P P P 

Private club, fraternity, sorority 
and lodges 

C C C C N N N C C C 

Public institutional buildings C C C P P P P P P P 
Public utility buildings, structures 
or appurtenances for public 
service uses 

C C C C C C C C C C 

Public or private school C C C C C C C C C C 



Use RA-10 RA-4 R1-R RRES R1-18 R-1-6 R-2 MFR MHS PUD

Ranch, non-commercial P P N CN N N N N N N N 
Recreation fields, public or 
private 

P P C C C C C C C P 

Recreation building P P C C C C C C C P 
Stable, private P P C P N N N N N N 
Stable, commercial C C C N N N N N N N 
Swimming pool (private) P P P P P P P P P P 
Temporary buildings used for the 
sale of homes or lots 

T/C T/C T/C T/C T/C T/C T/C T/C T/C T/C 

Town home N N N N N N P P N C 
Triplex N N N N N N P P N C 

 
§ 150.055 RURAL RESIDENTIAL EQUESTRIAN SUBDIVISION (RRES). 
 

(A) Purpose. The purpose of the Rural Residential Equestrian Subdivision Zoning 
District is intended to encourage unique, creatively developed subdivisions that are 
unified by common amenities, operations and associations for the accommodation of 
manufactured and/or site-built homes on individually owned lots, including necessary 
accessory uses and amenities and adequate open space to preserve the residential 
character. This District also serves to create or preserve compatible, rural enclaves with 
specified animal privileges within outlying and suburbanizing areas of Florence. 
 

(B) Permitted uses. The following uses are permitted in the RRES District: 
 

            (1) One dwelling unit per lot, which may be one of the following: 
                  (a)  One manufactured home, being no more than five years in age since the 
date of original construction, shall only be permitted to replace an existing manufactured 
home on an approved RRES lot of record; or 
                  

(b)  One site-built single-family dwelling unit. 
 
             (2)  Accessory buildings and uses, including private swimming pools and home 
occupations; 
 
             (3)  Agricultural Animals, subject to the following:  
 
                   (a) No agricultural animal/livestock shall be kept, maintained or stabled on 
any lot less than 42,000 square feet.  
 
                   (b) Two horses are permitted per each residential lot of record that exceeds 
42,000 square feet.  
 
                   (c) Offspring (under the age of 6 months) of permitted horses on-site, do not 
count towards the number of permitted animals: 
 
                    (d) Temporary agricultural/livestock activities or projects conducted 
primarily for educational purposes, i.e., Future Farmers of America (FFA), 4-H or school 



credits, are permitted in the RRES Zoning District and such animals are not counted 
toward the number of permitted agricultural animals. Animals may not include swine or 
roosters. Active membership must be maintained and verification of such may be 
required upon request. In addition, a sign (less than six square feet) designating a given 
member (i.e. 4-H or Future Farmers of America) is in residence must be visibly posted 
or displayed on the property at all times for any such project or activity in progress. 
 
                   (e) The area used for grazing, exercising or training of agricultural animals 
shall be securely fenced to prevent the animals from straying, or a suitable restraint 
shall be provided to prevent straying. No confinement area shall be located in the front 
yard, and the grazing of livestock shall be limited to the side and rear yards.  

 
                   (f) Fencing shall be required for all agricultural animals and shall consist of a 
view or partial view type fence, pipe rail or other similar fencing material, or a wall of 
sufficient height to restrain the animals(s). Such fence or wall shall be maintained and 
kept in a sound condition at all times. 
 
                    (g) Private stables for the housing of agricultural animals shall be 
constructed so as to facilitate maintenance in a clean and sanitary condition. 
 
                    (h) Stables used for the keeping of agricultural animals shall be located 
behind the front plane of the principal building or structure. Stables shall be set back a 
minimum of ten feet from all property lines and the principal structure or the distance 
required to comply with all applicable codes, whichever is greater. Stables shall not 
exceed the height regulations of the RRES Zoning District. 
 
                    (i) Corrals, or yards areas used for the keeping of agricultural animals shall 
be located within the rear half of the lot (or side yard) or parcel and shall be enclosed by 
a view or partial view-type fence, pipe rail or other similar fencing material, or wall of 
sufficient height to restrain the animal(s). Such fence or wall shall be maintained and 
kept in a sound condition at all times. 
 
                    (j) Animal wastes shall be stored at least twenty (20) feet from any property 
line, open space, drainage channel or surface waters and shall not violate the health 
and sanitation provisions of the Town Code and applicable codes of Pinal County. 
 

 (4) Secondary uses: 
 
                    (a) Community or recreational facilities for the use and benefit of the 
subdivision/community association; and 

 
                    (b) Common facility service buildings. All the buildings shall be centrally 
located and use shall be restricted to occupants. 
 
               (5) Those uses permitted in the RRES Zoning District per Table 150.047.A. 

 



     (C) Conditional uses. Uses may be permitted subject to a Conditional Use Permit 
(see § 150.015 and Table 150.047.A). 
 
               (1) Those uses conditionally permitted in the RRES Zoning District per Table 
150.047.A. 

 
Because no list of uses can be exhaustive, interpretations on unspecified uses shall be 
rendered by the Town Community Development Director with the right to appeal to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council. 
 
     (D) Property development standards. (See elsewhere in this Development Code for 
additional standards and exceptions.) 
 
               (1) Principal structure setbacks. 

 

Front Interior Side Street Side Rear 

20 feet 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 

 
     (2) Area and bulk requirements 
 

Minimum Site 
Area 

Minimum Lot 
Area 

Minimum Lot 
Width 

Minimum Lot 
Depth 

Maximum 
Height 

10 acres  42,000 sq. feet 60 feet 100 feet 30 feet 

Note: Additional regulations for distances between buildings, accessory buildings, 
access, walls, fences and required screening are contained in Part 8. Additional 
Height and Area Regulations and Expectations of the Development Code. 

 
               (3) Accessory structure setbacks and height. 

 

Front Interior Side Street Side Rear Maximum Height 

60 feet 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 20 feet 

              
   (4) Permanent Foundation. 
 

All manufactured homes must be attached to a permanent foundation where the home 
is set at the level of the adjacent grade, an installation commonly known as “ground-
set”. 
 
     (E) Off-street parking. Parking regulations are as provided in Part 7. Parking; 
Loading and Unloading of the Development Code. 
 
(Insertion of the new RRES Zoning District section into the Town Code requires the 



following organizational modifications) 
 150.045   Districts 
150.046   District boundaries 
150.047   District use regulations tables 
150.048   Rural Agricultural (RA-10) 
150.049   Rural Agricultural (RA-4) 
150.050   Single-Residential Ranchette (R1-R) 
  150.051 Rural Residential Equestrian Subdivision (RRES) 
150.051 150.052 Single-Family Residential (R1-18) 
150.052 150.053 Single-Family Residential (R1-6) 
150.053 150.054 Neighborhood Multi-Family (R-2) 
150.054 150.055 Multiple-Family Residential (MFR) 
150.055         150.056 Manufactured Home Subdivision (MHS) 
150.056 150.057 Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
150.057 150.058 Neighborhood Business (B-1) 
150.058 150.059 Neighborhood Office (NO) 
150.059 150.060 Downtown Commercial (DC) 
150.060 150.061 Highway Business Commercial (B-2) 
150.061 150.062 Tourist Commercial (TRC) 
150.062 150.063 Professional Office (PO) 
150.063 150.064 Public/Institutional (P/I) 
150.064 150.065 Light Industrial (LI) 
150.065 150.066 Heavy Industrial (HI) 
150.066 150.067 Overlay Districts; Historic District 
150.067 150.068 Parking Overlay District (P-1) 
150.068 150.069 Recreational Vehicle Parks and/or Subdivisions 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
this 19th day of May 2014. 
 
 

      ______________________________  
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:                                             APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
11b.  

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director          
                                      
SUBJECT:   Ordinance No. 610-14:  
                     Downtown Commercial DC Zone Change              
                    (PZC-11-14-ZC) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

 
DC Zone Change 

PZC-11-14-ZC 
May 19, 2014 

1 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 610-14 for the Downtown Commercial DC Zone 
Change. 

REQUEST: 

A zone change request by the Town of Florence to change existing zoning 
on multiple properties from Neighborhood Office (NO) to Downtown 
Commercial (DC) in an area generally bound by Ruggles Street to the 
north, Butte Avenue to the south, Bailey Street to the west and Pinal Street 
to the east and including property located at the southeast corner of Pinal 
Street and 8th Street. 
 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
A range of uses are permitted in the DC Zoning District that are intended to encourage 
and promote a pedestrian environment, specialty retail and historic character.  
Residential uses are encouraged as part of mixed use developments, ideally by being 
vertically or horizontally integrated into commercial and office environments. The range 
of uses permitted in the DC Zoning District are intended to underscore the uniqueness 
of the area.      

  
In January 2013, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Florence approved 
multiple staff-initiated text changes to the DC Zoning District to improve reinvestment 
opportunities and enhance economic development in the District.  These included: 
changes to allow hotels, bed and breakfast facilities, movie theaters and grocery stores 



 
DC Zone Change 

PZC-11-14-ZC 
May 19, 2014 

2 
 

as principally permitted uses in the DC Zone; providing consistency in setback 
requirements for commercial and residential uses; and eliminating most on-site parking 
requirements in the District.  
 
Ultimately, the boundaries of the DC District should be expanded per the goals of the 
2020 General Plan and Redevelopment Plan and to generally mirror the core of the 
Downtown Historic Business District.  
 
Over the past year, staff has been working with property owners to expand the DC 
District.  The Town is sponsoring this application that includes 12 private property 
owners and two Town owned properties that are located between Butte Avenue and 
Ruggles Street and between Bailey Street and Pinal Street.  Additionally, the 1940’s era 
adobe Ortega building located at the southeast corner of Pinal Street and 8th Street and 
the adjacent undeveloped Catholic Church property to the south are now included for 
this DC Zoning. 
 
ANALYSIS: 

The purpose of this application is to obtain a zone change approval for several property 
owners within the Historic District and identified by their Assessor’s Office Parcel 
Numbers: 
 

Parcel Numbers Property Owner/s Current Zoning 

 
1. 200-48-053B  Kari Maud    Neighborhood Office 
2. 200-48-0630   Barbara & Jack Moraga     Neighborhood Office 
3. 200-49-0110   Town of Florence  Neighborhood Office 
4. 200-49-0130   Town of Florence  Neighborhood Office 
5. 200-49-0120   Dixie Legler   Neighborhood Office 
6. 200-49-022B  Dixie Legler    Neighborhood Office 
7. 200-49-022A  Dixie Legler   Neighborhood Office 
8. 200-49-0230   Mosaic Church  Neighborhood Office 
9. 200-49-024C  Joel Meacham   Neighborhood Office 
10. 200-49-024B  Catholic Church  Neighborhood Office 
11. 200-49-0320   Richard & Elizabeth Smith Neighborhood Office 
12. 200-49-0430   Annette McDougall Trust Neighborhood Office 
13. 200-49-0450   Melissa Ritchey  Neighborhood Office 
14. 200-49-0460  James and Alice Tchida Neighborhood Office 

 
This current application originated from two of the above property owners that were 
seeking DC Zoning for their properties.  As these initial zone change requests 



 
DC Zone Change 

PZC-11-14-ZC 
May 19, 2014 

3 
 

commenced, staff made a concurrent effort to seek additional property owners 
interested in obtaining DC Zoning.  With substantial interest from owners, the two 
private applicants and the Town agreed to merge two applications into this single 
application. 
 

Vicinity Map 

  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
Town Staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona Revised 
Statutes regarding public participation. A notice for the Planning and Zoning 
Commission Public Hearing was mailed to all property owners within three hundred 
(300) feet of the site.  Property posting for notice of public hearing for a Zone Change 
was posted on the sites per Town requirements.  Advertisements in the local Town 
paper have been posted per Town requirements.  Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 
9, Section-462.04. In addition, Town of Florence Development Code; a public hearing is 
required for a zone change. 



 
DC Zone Change 

PZC-11-14-ZC 
May 19, 2014 

4 
 

 
The Schedule for Planning and Zoning/Town Council Meetings on this case is as 
follows: 
 
March 20, 2014   Planning and Zoning (Public Hearing) 
 
May 5, 2014 1st Town Council (Public Hearing and 1st Reading)  
 
May 19, 2014    2nd Town Council (action) 
 
All meetings will be held at Town Hall Council Chambers – 775 North Main Street. 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
Planning Staff offers the following findings for the consideration of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and Town Council: 
 
1. The proposed zoning is consistent with the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan.   

2. The 2020 General Plan has the Downtown Mixed Use (DMU) designation on the 
site which supports the mix of land uses while respecting the value of the historic 
area. 

3. Future development of the properties will be subject to all applicable Town 
codes. 

4. The zone change from Neighborhood Office (NO) to Downtown Commercial (DC) 
will allow more pedestrian-oriented land uses and make the subject area more 
compatible with the Historic District. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This zone change will have no immediate financial impact; however, future commercial 
and/or mixed use development of the subject area will have a positive impact on the 
Town. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission found that the zone change for Downtown (PZC-
13-14-ZC) is in compliance with the Town’s 2020 General Plan and is in the interest of 
general welfare, health and safety of the public. The Planning and Zoning Commission 
has forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation on the Downtown Commercial 



 
DC Zone Change 

PZC-11-14-ZC 
May 19, 2014 

5 
 

DC Zone Change, as described in Exhibit A, to the Mayor and Town Council, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 

Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the waiver attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. 

2. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 610-14 for the Downtown Commercial DC Zone 
Change. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 610-14 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Application materials 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DC Zone Change 
PZC-11-14-ZC   

Ordinance No. 610-14 
   

 1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.  610-14 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE DOWNTOWN 
COMMERCIAL (DC) ZONE CHANGE LOCATED IN AN AREA 
GENERALY BOUND BY RUGGLES STREET TO THE NORTH, 
BUTTE AVENUE TO THE SOUTH, BAILEY STREET TO THE 
WEST AND PINAL STREET TO THE EAST AND INCLUDING 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
PINAL STREET AND 8TH STREET (PZC-11-14-ZC).   

 
WHEREAS, a request to change the existing zoning on the subject 

property from Neighborhood Office (NO) to Downtown Commercial (DC) has 
been proposed and a public hearing has been held by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has found the zone 

change is in conformance with the 2020 Town’s General Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded the 

Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence a favorable recommendation for the 
Zone Change, subject to certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Mayor and Council 

of the Town of Florence and the recommended zone change has been found to 
be appropriate and further found to promote the health, safety and welfare of the 
residents of the Town and its orderly growth. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
The Zoning Map of Florence, Arizona, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the parcel of land depicted on EXHIBIT A attached 
hereto, from Neighborhood Office (NO) to Downtown Commercial (DC), subject 
to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development of the subject site, as described in Exhibit A attached, shall 

be in conformance to any applicable Town Codes and Ordinances. 
 

2. Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 
Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached hereto 
as Exhibit B. 

 



DC Zone Change 
PZC-11-14-ZC   

Ordinance No. 610-14 
   

 2 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 19th day of May 2014. 

 

      ______________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

ATTEST:                                             APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________ ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 









































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
12a. 

MEETING DATE: May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Changes to the  Planning and  Zoning        
                     Commission Membership  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

 
Subject;  Planning and Zoning Commission Appointments                        Meeting Date:  May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the following: 

 The appointment of Gary Pranzo to the Planning and Zoning Commission, with a 
term expiring 12/31/15 

 The appointment of Billie Jo Garcia to the Planning and Zoning Commission, with 
a term expiring 12/31/14 

 The appointment of Lee Olson to the Planning and Zoning Commission, as an 
alternate member 

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Planning and Zoning Commission, conducted 
interviews with three of the four applicants interested in serving on the Town’s Planning 
and Zoning Commission. The fourth applicant was asked to interview, but declined.   
 
The Chairman and Vice-Chairman conducted the interviews at Town Hall on May 6, 
2014, and it is their recommendation that is provided herein. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
No fiscal impact with this request. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to approve the following: 

 The appointment of Gary Pranzo to the Planning and Zoning Commission, with a 
term expiring 12/31/15 

 The appointment of Billie Jo Garcia to the Planning and Zoning Commission, with 
a term expiring 12/31/14 



 
Subject;  Planning and Zoning Commission Appointments                        Meeting Date:  May 19, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

 The appointment of Lee Olson to the Planning and Zoning Commission, as an 
alternate member. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Boards and Commission Applications 
Planning and Zoning Commission Membership List  
 
 































Updated 4-22-14 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
(3 Year Term) 

Meets the First and Third Thursday of the Month at 6:00p.m. 
5 members 

 
 
Jeff Wooley, Chairman 
P.O. Box 2896 
373 E. Ashley Way 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Home:  520-868-2398  
Cell:  520-431-5710  
jkwooley@pinalinternet.net 
jkwooley@cox,net 
Appointed:  1/20/2009 
Expires: 12/31/2014 
 
Vacant 
Expires:  12/31/2014 
 
Vacant: 
Expires:  12/31/2015 
 
James Petty 
566 E. Echo Lane 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Home: 520-868-4564 
Work: 520-866-6545 
nobasura@earthlink.net 
Appointed: 1/7/2013 
Expires: 12/ 31/2015 
 
Larry R. Putrick, Vice-Chairman 
6434 W. Willow Way 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Home:  520-709-3389 
Alternate: 425-641-3898  
premaero@cox.net 
Appointed:  1/7/2013 
Expires: 12/31/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Alternate: 
Vacant 
 
Staff Liaison 
Mark Eckhoff 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Work:  (520) 868-7540 
mark.eckhoff@florenceaz.gov 
 
 
Council Liaisons 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
130 Campbell Road 
P O Box 1378 
Florence, AZ  85132 
Home:  520-868-9647 
Cell:  520-705-1601 
 
Councilmember Ruben Montaño 
360 E. Ruggles Rd. 
P O Box 801 
Florence  AZ  85132 
520-705-1402 
 
 
 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
12b.  

MEETING DATE:  May 19, 2014 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1443-14:   Pre-Annexation and  
                    Development Agreement with MP Florence, LLC. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

MP FLORENCE, LLC. PADA 
May 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1443-14 entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement (PADA) with MP FLORENCE, LLC. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed Arizona Farms annexation area encompasses a land area of 
approximately 1,171 acres or 1.89 square miles.  The annexation area is generally 
bound by the Copper Basin Railroad to the west, Felix Road to the east, Arizona Farms 
Road to the north and the Anthem at Merrill Ranch community to the south. 
 
MP Florence, LLC owns approximately 23 acres within the subject annexation area, all 
of which are contained within the platted Crestfield Manor subdivision.  Within the 23 
acres, the owner has 111 lots that are ready for new home development and three lots 
with existing homes.  The owner expects to commence development on these lots 
within the next one to three years, depending upon market conditions. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Overall positive, entering into this PADA facilitates the successful completion of the 
Arizona Farms annexation and promotes new development and population growth 
within the Town of Florence.  It is noted that the PADA commits to not increase 
development impact fees for the subject lots for the first five years of the term of the 
PADA.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1443-14, entering into a Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with MP Florence, LLC. 



MP FLORENCE, LLC. PADA 
May 19, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENT: 
 
Resolution No. 1443-14 
PADA with MP Florence, LLC. 
 



When recorded, return to: 
 
Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
PO Box 2670 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ  85132 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1443-14 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRE-ANNEXATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH MP FLORENCE, LLC., AN 
OREGON LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF SUCH PRE-ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT (ANNEXATION NO. 2013-02 – “CRESTFIELD MANOR 
MP FLORENCE” PROPERTY). 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Florence is authorized pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-500.05 to 
enter into development agreements and generally is authorized to enter into contracts; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, MP Florence, the “Owner” plans to develop approximately 23 acres 
of land located as legally described on Exhibit “A” and shown on Exhibit “B” attached 
hereto (the “Property”), and desires to annex the Property into the town limits of 
Florence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed development of the Property and the Pre-Annexation 
and Development Agreement are consistent with the Town of Florence General Plan 
applicable to the Property as of the date of this Resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement provides for 
various matters relating to the development of the Property, including the approval of a 
development plan, duration of the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement, the 
conditions, terms and requirements applicable to public services and infrastructure and 
the financing of same, the permitted uses of the Property and the density and intensity 
of such uses, the phasing over time of construction and development on the Property 
and other matters related to the development of the Property. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
1. The Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between the Town of Florence 
and the Owner, which sets forth a development plan and the terms and conditions for 
the annexation and development of approximately 23 acres of property is hereby 
approved, adopted, and made a part hereof as if fully set out in this Resolution.  If the 
Town does not annex the Property in a timely manner following adoption of the Pre-



Annexation and Development Agreement, or if the Town rescinds the Resolution 
annexing the Property, the Town promptly and within thirty days of the adoption of this 
Resolution shall rescind this Resolution. 
 
2. The Mayor of the Town of Florence is authorized to and shall execute the Pre-
Annexation and Development Agreement. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona this 19th day of May 2014.  
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 
 



APN Physical_Address Name1 Acres
200136000 24111 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.22
200135720 10101 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135930 24114 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136170 24075 N WHEAT RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.22
200136300 24113 N CORN CIR   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136120 24098 N WHEAT RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135710 10119 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136340 24134 N CORN CIR   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.23
200135940 24136 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135990 24135 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.25
200135700 10145 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136160 24087 N WHEAT RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135880 9773 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.22
200135830 9867 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135840 9849 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135850 9827 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135860 9809 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135870 9791 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.18
200135820 9875 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135810 9895 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.21
200135800 9919 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.23
200135890 24032 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.25
200135790 9941 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.21
200135780 9965 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135900 24054 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135770 9983 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135760 10001 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136040 9828 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136020 9792 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.21
200136070 9884 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135910 24072 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136090 9942 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.21
200136320 24084 N CORN CIR   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.26
200136140 24072 N WHEAT RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.21
200136010 24085 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135740 10061 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135920 24096 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135730 10083 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136130 24084 N WHEAT RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136330 24112 N CORN CIR   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.23
200136110 24114 N WHEAT RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.18
200136290 24135 N CORN CIR   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136180 24110 N SEED CIR   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.22
200135690 10163 E COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.24
200136150 24101 N WHEAT RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136100 MP FLORENCE LLC 0.18
200136190 24136 N SEED CIR   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.18
200135950 24158 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136200 24152 N SEED CIR   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.22
200136280 9925 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135670 24177 N COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.27
200136270 9939 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136360 9804 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.26
200136350 9786 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.21
200136370 9816 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.29
200136380 9830 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.29
200136260 9961 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136390 9860 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.31
200135660 24199 N COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.22
200135970 24200 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136250 9985 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136400 9888 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.28
200136240 10009 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136230 10067 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136220 10099 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136210 10129 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135650 24215 N COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135980 24220 N ROOSTER RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136410 9920 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.26
200136650 9785 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136640 9803 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.22
200136630 9821 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.24
200136420 9934 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136620 9839 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.22
200136610 9855 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.21
200135640 24237 N COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136430 9952 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136600 9873 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.24
200136440 9982 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135630 24255 N COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136590 9905 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.23
200136450 10016 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136460 10042 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136580 9919 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136470 10070 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136480 10100 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136490 10130 E ORANGE GROVE ST   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136570 9937 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135420 9780 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135620 24271 N COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135430 9802 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135410 9766 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135440 9820 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135400 9748 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136560 9955 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135450 9838 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135460 9856 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136550 9983 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135470 9874 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135610 24299 N COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200136540 10015 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136530 10041 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135480 9892 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136520 10069 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136510 10101 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200136500 10131 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135490 9910 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135500 9928 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135600 24319 N COTTON RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135510 9946 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135520 9964 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.20
200135570 10104 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.19
200135580 10132 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.18
200135590 10160 E HARVEST RD   MP FLORENCE LLC 0.18

23.35 Total

Exhibit A



SEED CIR

H
AR

V
EST R

D

SILO RD

C
O

R
N

CIR

HARVEST
RD

BARLEY RD

ALFALFA DR

HAY LOFT DR

APPLE R
D

TANGERINE RD

HARVEST RD

CO
TTON

CIR

ORANGE GROVE ST

BAR
LEY

CIR

SEED
RD

TANGERINE RD

O
X

E
N

 R
D

W
HEAT

RD

TANGERINE RD

SILO CIR

P
LO

W
R

D

BAR
LEY R

D

C
O

R
N

ST

PLUM
 RD

GRAPEFRUIT DR

ALFALFA DR

HAY LOFT DR

GREENHOUSE RD

HERITAGE RD

COTTON RD

FE
LI

X 
R

D

S
IC

K
LE

 R
D

COTTON RD

BAR
N

 C
IR

FIELD
 R

D

R
O

O
S

TE
R

R
D

COBBLESTONE DR

CO
R

N
ST

Town
of

Florence

Exhibit B:
Legal Description Map

This map is created for reference purposes only and is to be used
at your own risk.  The Town of Florence makes no warranty as to
the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this 
map and assumes no liability for any errors or omissions contained
therein, nor for any direct, indirect, or consequential damages which
may be caused by its use.  It is the user's responsibility to verify all
information conatined herein.

/
0 275 550

Feet

Parcel Owners

Others

MP FLORENCE LLC
























































	May 19, 2014 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5 - MRCFD NO. 1 Agenda 

	3. Adaptive Reuse Code Work Session
	7. PUBLIC HEARING & PRESENTATION
	7a. FGMHA Class A Bingo License

	8. MRCFD NO. 1
	8a. MRCFD No. 1 2014 GO Bonds

	10. CONSENT
	10a. Resolution No. 1437-14 for American Legion
	10b. Resolution No. 1438-14 Project Birdge Back to School Program
	10c. Resolution No. 1439-14 Project Bridge Meal Program
	10d. Resolution No. 1440-14 GRIC Funding for Booking Workstation
	10e. Resolution No. 1441-14 GRIC Funding for POV Video System
	10f. Resolution No. 1442-14 GRIC funding for PD Training Simulator
	10g.  MAG funding for Street Sweeper
	10h. April 7, 2014 Council Minutes
	10h. April 14, 2014 Council Minutes
	10h. April 21, 2014 Council Minutes
	10h. April 23, 2014 Council Minuttes

	10i i. February 26, 2014 HDAC Minutes
	10i ii. March 19, 2014 Library Minutes
	10i iii. February 12, 2014 PZ Minutes
	10i iii. February 20, 2014 PZ Minutes


	11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	11a. Ordinance No. 606-13 RRES Subdivision
	11b. Ordinance No. 610-14 DC Zone Change

	12. NEW BUSINESS
	12a. Planning and Zoning Commission Appointments
	12b. Resolution No. 1443-14 PADA with MP Florence LLC




